
1 

 

North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

 
O F F I C I A L    A G E N D A  

REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 
 

VILLAGE HALL 
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

 
TUESDAY, JULY 11, 2017 

7:30 P.M. 
 
NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN TO ALL INTERESTED PARTIES THAT IF ANY PERSON SHOULD DECIDE TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE AT THE 
FORTHCOMING MEETING OF THE VILLAGE COMMISSION, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, HE OR SHE WILL NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE 
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE VILLAGE 
FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT 
OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW.   
 
TO REQUEST THIS MATERIAL IN ACCESSIBLE FORMAT, SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS, INFORMATION ON ACCESS FOR PERSON WITH 
DISABILITIES, AND/OR ANY ACCOMMODATION TO REVIEW ANY DOCUMENT OR PARTICIPATE IN ANY VILLAGE-SPONSORED PROCEEDING, 
PLEASE CONTACT (305) 756-7171 FIVE DAYS IN ADVANCE TO INITIATE YOUR REQUEST.  TTY USERS MAY ALSO CALL 711 (FLORIDA RELAY 
SERVICE). 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
     
 ROLL CALL 
 
 NEW OATH OF OFFICE – MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION 
 
2. A.  PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS  
 
 B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
  1. Presentation of FY 2017 Audit Report/Keefe McCullough  
  2. Dalia Villar, Treasure Island Principal/Update on TIES IB Program 
 
         C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

 
3. GOOD & WELFARE 
 
4. GRANT WRITER’S REPORT 
 
5. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS 
 
 A. ANIMAL CONTROL ADVISORY BOARD 
  
 B. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

2 

   
 C. CITIZENS BUDGET & OVERSIGHT BOARD 
   
 D. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD 
  
 E. PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 
6. VILLAGE COMMISSION’S REPORT 
 
7. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
8. VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORTS 
 
9.     CONSENT AGENDA: (Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are 

not expected to require discussion or review. Items will be adopted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired by any member of the Commission, that item must be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.) 

 
 A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING THE TITLE VI NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY 
 AND PLAN; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR 
 AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

 
  The proposed Resolution will approve the referenced policy and plan, which is 

 intended to generally address nondiscrimination in the provision of Village programs 
 and services. 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 

10. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, RESOLVING THE MATTER OF CODE ENFORCEMENT  FINES 
IMPOSED AGAINST BAYVIEW VILLAGES AT 7915 EAST DRIVE, NORTH 
BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE VILLAGE 
OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE 
SETTLEMENT; TO EXECUTE AND FILE ANY REQUIRED DOCUMENTS 
WITH THE CLERK OF COURT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE ATTORNEY ROBERT L. SWITKES) 
 
The proposed Resolution will settle a Code Enforcement Case against Bayview 
Villages for having outside storage, dumpsters not in enclosures, and junk vehicle 
storage with payment of a $36,405 fine. 

 
 1.) Commission Action 

  



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

3 

 B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A 
 TRAILER-MOUNTED JET RODDER, FROM SOUTHERN SEWER 
 EQUIPMENT OF FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA, UNDER THE 
 PIGGYBACK PURCHASE PROVISION PURSUANT TO SECTION 
 36.25(J) OF THE VILLAGE CODE; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION 
 OF THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE 
 VILLAGE OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO 
 IMPLEMENT THE TERM OF THIS RESOLUTION; 
 AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED FUNDS; 
 AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
 VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 
 The proposed Resolution will allow the Public Works Department to 
 purchase a Jet Rodder to clear blockages in the sewer lines. 
 
 1.) Commission Action 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARINGS ITEMS INCLUDING ORDINANCES FOR SECOND 
 READING: Please be advised that if you wish to comment upon any of these quasi-judicial items, please inform the Mayor 
 when she requests public comments.  An opportunity for persons to speak on each item will be made available after the applicant 
 and staffs have made  their presentations on each item. All testimony, including public testimony and evidence, will be made 
 under oath or affirmation. Additionally, each person who gives testimony may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse 
 either to be cross-examined or to be sworn, your testimony will be given its due weight.  The general public will not be permitted 
 to cross-examine witnesses, but the public may request the Commission to ask questions of staff or witnesses on their behalf. 
 Persons representing organizations must present evidence of their authority to speak for the organization. Further, details of the 
 quasi-judicial procedures may be obtained from the Village Clerk. 
 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING AN EXTENSION OF A SPECIAL USE 
 EXCEPTION GRANTED UNDER RESOLUTION 2015-27 AND 
 EXTENDED UNDER RESOLUTION 2016-39 TO BRICK VILLAGE 
 79, LLC FOR DEVELOPMENT  OF A MIXED-USE RESIDENTIAL AND 
 COMMERCIAL STRUCTURE IN THE  CG (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) 
 ZONING DISTRICT, AT 1601 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY; PURSUANT 
 TO FLORIDA STATUTE 252.363 AND FLORIDA EXECUTIVE 
 ORDERS 16-149, 16-193, 16-233, 16-288, AND 17-43; SETTING AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE  MANAGER FRANK 
 K. ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution will extend the Special Use Exception to June 13, 2018 
 in accordance with Florida Statute 252.363, which provides for mandatory 
 extension of development orders, under the Governor’s declaration of a state of 
 emergency, due to the Zika Virus. 

 
 
  1.) Commission Action 

 
  



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

4 

B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING AN EXTENSION OF A SPECIAL USE 
EXCEPTION GRANTED BY RESOLUTION 2015-28 AND EXTENDED BY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-40 TO BRICK VILLAGE 79, LLC FOR THE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1601 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, TO ALLOW 
UP TO TWENTY PERCENT OF THE DEVELOPMENT’S REQUIRED 
PARKING SPACES TO BE DESIGNED SPECIFICALLY FOR COMPACT 
VEHICLES;  PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 252.363 AND 
FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDERS 16-149, 16-193, 16-233, 16-288, AND 17-
43; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution will extend the Special Use Exception to June 13, 2018 
 in accordance with Florida Statute 252.363, which provided for mandatory 
 extension of development orders, under the Governor’s declaration of a state of 
 emergency, due to the Zika Virus. 
 

  1.) Commission Action 
 
C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, EXTENDING APPROVAL OF A SITE PLAN GRANTED BY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26 TO BRICK VILLAGE 79, LLC, FOR 
DEVELOPMENT OF A 75 UNIT, 22 STORY MIXED-USE COMMERCIAL 
STRUCTURE AT 1601 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY IN THE CG (GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL) ZONING DISTRICT; PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 
STATUTE 252.363 AND FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDERS 16-149, 16-193, 
16-233, 16-288, AND 17-43; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; AND 
SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution will extend the Site Plan to June 13, 2018 in accordance 
 with Florida Statute 252.363, which provided for mandatory extension of 
 development orders, under the Governor’s declaration a state of emergency, due 
 to the  Zika Virus. 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE VILLAGE 
MANAGER AND AWARDING RFP NO. 2017-003 FOR ROOF REPAIRS TO 
1841 GALLEON STREET FACILITY TO THERMA SEAL SYSTEMS, LLC; 
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE 
RELATED CONTRACT PURSUANT TO THE SCOPE OF SERVICES 
OUTLINED IN THE RFP DOCUMENTS; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

5 

 The proposed Resolution will accept the recommendation of the Village Manager to 
award the contract for repairing the roof of the building at 1841 Galleon Street to Thermal 
Seal Systems, LLC as also recommended by the Technical Evaluation Committee. 

 
 1.) Commission Action 
 
B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE VILLAGE 
MANAGER AND AWARDING RFP NO. 2017-004 FOR CLEANING OF THE 
MAIN WET WELL AT 1851 GALLEON STREET TO ENVIROWASTE 
SERVICES GROUP, INC.; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO THE RELATED CONTRACT PURSUANT TO THE SCOPE OF 
SERVICES OUTLINED IN THE RFP DOCUMENTS; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution will accept the recommendation of the Village Manager to 

award the contract for cleaning the main wet well at the sewage station on Galleon Street 
to Envirowaste Services Group, Inc., as also recommended by the Technical Evaluation 
Committee. 

 
 1.) Commission Action 

 
C. VOTING DELEGATE AT FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES ANNUAL  

 CONFERENCE 
 
 1.) Commission Action 

 
13. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 FY 2018 GENERAL OPERATING BUDGET 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA DETERMINING THE PROPOSED  MILLAGE RATES AND 
 SETTING THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 TO ADOPT THE TENTATIVE AND FINAL MILLAGE AND BUDGET 
 FOR  FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 AS REQUIRED BY LAW; DIRECTING 
 THE  VILLAGE CLERK TO FILE SAID RESOLUTION WITH THE 
 PROPERTY APPRAISER OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; AND 
 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (INTRODUCED BY 
 VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 The proposed Resolution will set the proposed Millage Rate for the FY18 Budget 
 and approve the dates and times for the Tentative Budget Public Hearing and the 
 Final Budget Public Hearing. 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
  



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

6 

14. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – COMMISSION MEETINGS 
 
 A. SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING – JUNE 7, 2017 
 B. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING – MAY 9, 2017 

C. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING - MARCH 28, 2017 
D. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING – MARCH 14, 2017 
E. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2017 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
   
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 



4

Page 1



Page 2



Mayor 
Connie Leon-Kreps 

Vice Mayor 
Eddie Lim 

Commissioner 
Jose R. Alvarez 

Commissioner 
Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby 

Commissioner 
Andreana Jackson 

North Bay Village 

Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: 

www.nbvillage.com 

OFFICIAL MINUTES 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

VILLAGE HALL 
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

JUNE 6, 2017 – 7:30 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by the Chair Bud Farrey. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

3. ROLL CALL

The Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes read the Quasi-Judicial Rules of the Village 
pursuant to Chapter 29 of the Village Code, and swore in all those who indicated that 
they would provide testimony on any agenda item. 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS (QUASI-JUDICIAL): Please be advised that the following items are quasi-
 judicial in nature.  If you wish to object or comment upon any of these items, please inform the Chair when he requests public 

comments.  An opportunity for persons to speak on each item will be made available after the applicant and staff has made their 
presentations on each item. All testimony, including public testimony and evidence, will be made under oath or affirmation. 
Additionally, each person who gives testimony may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse either to be  cross-examined or to 
be sworn, your testimony will be given its due weight.  The general public will not be permitted to cross-examine witnesses,
but the public may request the Board to ask questions of staff or witnesses on their behalf. Persons  representing organizations must 
present evidence of their authority to speak for the organization. Further, details of the quasi-judicial procedures may be obtained from 
the Village Clerk.

5E

Page 3



 

DRAFT 
Minutes 

Planning & Zoning Board Meting 
June 6, 2017 

2 
 

 
 

A. AN APPLICATION BY BRICK VILLAGE 79, LLC CONCERNING PROPERTY 
 LOCATED AT 1601 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, 
 FOR THE FOLLOWING: 

 
 1. EXTENSION OF A SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION GRANTED BY 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2016-39 PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.098 OF THE 
 NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR DEVELOPMENT 
 OF A MIXED-USE RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL STRUCTURE IN 
 THE CG (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) ZONING DISTRICT.  IF APPROVED 
 BY THE COMMISSION, THIS SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION SHALL BE 
 VALID UNTIL JUNE 13, 2018 PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 252.363 
 AND FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDERS 16-149, 16-193, 16-233, 16-288, AND 
 17-43. 

 
 2. EXTENSION OF A SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION GRANTED BY 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2016-40 PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.098 OF THE 
 NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW UP TO 
 TWENTY PERCENT OF THE DEVELOPMENT’S REQUIRED PARKING 
 SPACES TO BE DESIGNED SPECIFICALLY FOR COMPACT VEHICLES.  
 IF APPROVED BY THE COMMISSION, THIS SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION 
 SHALL BE VALID UNTIL JUNE 13, 2018 PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 
 STATUTE 252.363 AND FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDERS 16-149, 16-193, 
 16-233, 16-288, AND 17-43. 

 
 3. EXTENSION OF A SITE PLAN APPROVAL GRANTED BY RESOLUTION 

 NO. 2015-26 PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 152.105(C)(9) AND 152.030(C)(3) 
 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR 
 DEVELOPMENT OF A 75 DWELLING UNIT 22 STORY MIXED-USE 
 STRUCTURE IN THE CG (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) ZONING DISTRICT.  
 IF APPROVED BY THE COMMISSION, THIS SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION 
 SHALL BE VALID UNTIL JUNE 13, 2018 PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 
 STATUTE 252.363 AND FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDERS 16-149, 16-193, 
 16-233, 16-288, AND 17-43. 

 
 The Village Clerk read the requests into the record. 
 
 The Village Planner, Jim LaRue, of LaRue Planning & Management 

Services, Inc. presented the Staff Report and explained the requests to 
renew the Site Plan and two Special Use Exceptions. He informed the 
Board that the Special Exceptions were valid for one year and one-year 
extensions were granted. The Site Plan was valid for two years and all 
three approvals were set to expire on February 24, 2017. Extensions were 
granted under the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders due to the zika 
virus, which allowed for extensions to June 13, 2018.  

 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

DRAFT 
Minutes 

Planning & Zoning Board Meting 
June 6, 2017 

3 
 

 
 The Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes clarified that as a result of the 

zika virus emergencies, the governor granted extensions of 60 days to 
developments, due to the economic emergency and economic consequence 
of the virus.  He informed the Board that communities are bound to follow 
these orders.  

 
 Steven Herzberg, Esq., of Vazquez & Associates, 701 Brickell Avenue, 

Suite 2000, Miami, FL 33131, was present as legal counsel to the 
applicant.  He informed the Board that no changes were being requested, 
other than the extensions.  He noted that Architect Kobi Karp was present 
on behalf of the application. 

 
 The Chair Bud Farrey asked Mr. Herzberg about the applicant’s plans to 

begin development of the project.  Mr. Herzberg discussed his client’s 
intension to move forward in the time frame. 

 
 Fane Lozman, of 1415 79th Street, addressed the Board and reported that 

the property is on the market, and the owner is an investor who has no 
intension to build.  He also brought to the Board’s attention public 
nuisance of the property with people trespassing onto the site (1601 
Kennedy Causeway) and transiting down the seawall to Channel 7, where 
there have been numerous complaints, disputes, and people fishing from 
the seawall.   He also expressed his disagreement that Special Exceptions 
are a matter of right. He suggested that approval should be at discretion of 
the Board/Commission.  He requested that the property be fenced off and 
be secured as a condition of approval, to keep people out and from 
trespassing onto other people’s property. 

 
 The Chair closed the Public Hearing. 
 
 Mr. Herzberg responded that the property is not on the market.  Regarding 

the fence, he mentioned that the property is in usable condition; it had 
been offered to the Village for certain events in the past; and North Bay 
Village police cars parked in the parking lot.  He stated their position that 
putting a fence around the property will make it appear as another 
abandoned building.  He informed the Board that he was not aware of any 
issues on the property; and any such issues could be brought to his client’s 
attention.  He talked about their intention to use the existing building for a 
sales center, before actual ground work begins. 

   
 Board Member Marvin Wilmoth pointed out the liability of not fencing off 

the site, because of the many incidents that have taken place there. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 5



 

DRAFT 
Minutes 

Planning & Zoning Board Meting 
June 6, 2017 

4 
 

 The Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes reported that the issue of fencing 
off properties has come before the Village Commission, but legislation has 
not been passed.  He reminded Mr. Herzberg of Mr. Wilmoth’s position 
and of the information that was placed on record, that there is significant 
trespassing and vandalism occurring, as a result of the conduit from their 
property.  He disagreed with Mr. Lozman’s comments that the Board has 
discretion not to grant the extensions, based on the Governor’s Orders. 

  
 Mr. Switkes advised Mr. Herzberg that now that he is apprised, at a public 

hearing, with the information on the record that there is substantial 
trespassing and criminal activity happening as a conduit to his property, he 
believes that the Village does not have a problem with fencing and proper 
screening of the property. And being put on notice regarding the potentials 
put his client in jeopardy.  He further advised Mr. Herzberg that public 
statements have been made that there is significant liability, and if an act 
were to occur, Mr. Herzberg was apprised of it and no action would have 
been taken. 

 
 Mr. Herzberg stated that this is the first time he has heard that there are 

issues with the property. 
 
 The Chair Bud Farrey asked if the suggestion was to install a fence across 

79th Street or perpendicular to 79th Street to the bay, to prevent vagrants 
from moving from the site to the west along the seawall at Channel 7. 

  
 Board Member Wilmoth stated that if the trespassing was happening in 

that area, it may make sense to fence the area along the seawall, if there 
are no other means of ingress and egress to the other pieces of property.  
He stated that it may be fine, if the Village Officer’s are using the front 
space for policing activities and for watching.  However, the Village 
Attorney brings up a proper point that residents are now saying that the 
seawall area is being used to trespass onto other properties.  He advised 
Mr. Herzberg to take the matter of fencing the property into consideration,  

 
 Board Member Doris O’Hare asked for an update from the Village 

Manager Frank K. Rollason regarding the location, 1601 Kennedy 
Causeway. 

 
 Mr. Rollason reported about issues occurring behind the building, him 

being aware of the trespassing and the Village trying to enforce 
regulations. He described how people go behind the building and parked 
their vehicles completely out of sight, with officers not being able to see 
them from the street.  Additionally, people fish in the back of the property 
on weekends, and discussion about a solution of fencing the property on 
both sides and along the seawall with an access gate for trucks and leaving 
the front visible, which would be helpful to officers and solve the problem 
for Channel 7. 

 

Page 6



 

DRAFT 
Minutes 

Planning & Zoning Board Meting 
June 6, 2017 

5 
 

 
 
  
 Board Member Doris O’Hare suggested an additional measure of a fan-

type fence that goes over the seawall. 
   
 Village Manager Frank K. Rollason stated fencing off the sides all the way 

across would eliminate the problem of people getting to the seawall. 
 
 Board Member Doris O’Hare stated that the site is a nice place to be used 

by the Village and that Farmer’s Markets were also held there. 
 
 Mr. Herzberg clarified that the suggestion was to keep the front of the 

property open and fence off the sides, so that no one can go behind.  He 
agreed with the suggestion and will recommend that his client install the 
fencing accordingly. 

 
 Board Member Marvin Wilmoth asked the Village Attorney about adding 

conditions to the approval of the Special Exceptions. 
 
 Village Attorney Robert Switkes took the position that no conditions can 

be added to the approvals. 
 
 Mr. Herzberg stated that because there is now a potential legal liability, as 

the Village Attorney has advised, they will take proper safety measures. 
 
 The Chair re-opened the Public Hearing  
 
 Fane Lozman referred to the Village requiring Shucker’s to fence off their 

seawall, which resulted in a lot of the crowd transitioning to the 1601 
Kennedy Causeway site and walk from the front straight into Channel 7.  
Mr. Lozman stated his belief that that the General Site Plan is under the 
Zika Order, but the Board has control of the Special Exception, and does 
not have to give an extension.  He reiterated his experience with the 
property and its criminal activities and suggested that approval of the 
Special Exceptions be conditioned upon fencing the property. 

 
 Board Member Wilmoth advised Mr. Lozman that the Board had already 

asked the Village Attorney about the question of the conditional approval.  
He indicated that the Board could not mandate anything upon the private 
owner, although it seemed that they were amenable to putting up a fence 
on the sides and along the seawall, now that they are on public notice of 
incidents of public safety. 

 
 Mr. Herzberg assured the Board that the fence will be installed. 
 
 The Village Attorney thanked Mr. Lozman for bringing the matter to the 

attention of the Board. 

Page 7



 

DRAFT 
Minutes 

Planning & Zoning Board Meting 
June 6, 2017 

6 
 

 
 
 
 Marvin Wilmoth made a motion to extend the Site Plan and the Special 

Use Exceptions as outlined above with the condition as stipulated by the 
owners’ legal counsel, Mr. Steven Herzberg, that fencing will be installed 
along the sides and the rear of the seawall.  Doris O’Hare seconded the 
motion, which was approved by 4-0 roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows:  Aniley Perez, Doris O’Hare, Bud Farrey, and Marvin Wilmoth 
all voting Yes.  Dr. Paul Norris was absent. 

  
5.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 A. REGULAR PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING – MAY 2, 2017 
  

 Marvin Wilmoth made a motion to approve the Minutes as submitted.  Doris 
 O’Hare seconded the motion, which was adopted by a 4-0 roll call vote.  The vote 
 was as  follows:  Bud Farrey, Doris O’Hare, Aniley Perez, and Marvin Wilmoth 
 all voting Yes.  Dr. Paul Norris was absent. 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 8:28 p.m. 
 

Prepared and submitted by:  Yvonne P. Hamilton 
      Village Clerk 
 
Approved by the Planning & Zoning Board on  
this __________ day of _________ 2017. 
 
______________________________________ 
Bud Farrey 
 
(Note:  The Minutes are summary of the proceeding.) 
 
 

 
 
   
 

Page 8



8

Page 9



9A

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



10A

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



10B

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



11A - 11C

Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



12A

Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



 

1 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

FOR 
 

ROOF REPAIRS TO 1841 GALLEON STREET FACILITY 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 

 
RFP NO. NBV 2017-003 

 
 

 
SEALED PROPOSALS WILL BE RECEIVED BY THE VILLAGE CLERK, 

1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, SUITE 300, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 
ON OR BEFORE APRIL 28, 2017, 3:00 P.M. 

North Bay Village, Florida 
 

 

Page 171



 

2 
 

 

Table of Contents 

 
 
 
Section 1 Request for Proposals Notice ……………………………………………..……….4 
 
Section 2 Introduction/Information ………………………………………………………......7 
 
Section 3 General Conditions …………………………….…………………………….…….8 
 
Section 4 Special Conditions ………………………………………………………………....13 
 
Section 5 Technical Specifications/Scope of Services ……………………………………….19 
 
Section 6 Evaluation Procedures……………………………………………………………...21 
 
Section 7 Requirements of the Proposal ………………….…….……………………….……23  
 
Section 8 Technical Proposal …………………………………………………………………24 
 
Section 9 Cone of Silence ………………………….…………………………………………26 
 
Section 10 Qualification Forms ………………………….…………………………………   29  
 

Page 172



 

3 
 

SECTION 1 – REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NOTICE 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
ROOF REPAIRS TO 1841 GALLEON STREET FACILITY 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA 
 

RFP NO. NBV 2017-003 
 
Public Notice is hereby given that North Bay Village, Florida is requesting proposals from 
experienced and qualified vendors to replace the existing roof tile and flat roof on the building 
located at 1841 Galleon Street, North Bay Village, Florida. The scope of work includes replacing 
damaged ply-board sheathing, drip edge material, fascia board, hip and ridge metal, removal of 
sky light and all other damaged roofing materials as required. Work is to be performed in 
accordance with applicable building code requirements. 
 
Sealed Responses clearly labeled with the RFP title and number must be received by mail 
or hand delivered on or before April 28, 2017, no later than 3:00 p.m. local time, at which 
time they will be publicly opened.  Late submittals and facsimile submissions will not be 
considered.  The respondent shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission 
of the submittal documents. 
 
Respondents must submit an original unbound package, six (6) additional bound copies, and one 
(1) CD ROM to the Office of the Village Clerk, North Bay Village, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, 
Suite 300, North Bay Village, Florida  33141. 
 
Copies of this Proposal Document may be obtained at DemandStar by Onvia at 
www.demandstar.com., at the Village Administrative Offices, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 
300, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, or 
by emailing yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com. 
 
The Village reserves the right at any time to modify, waive or otherwise vary the terms and 
conditions of the bid including but not limited to deadlines for submission, submission 
requirements, informalities or irregularities in any submittal, and the Scope of Work. The Village 
further reserves the right to reject any or all submittals, to cancel or withdraw this RFP at any 
time or take any other such actions that may be deemed in the best interest of the Village, to 
award in whole or in part to one or more respondents, or take any other such actions that may be 
deemed in the best interest of the Village. 
 
Pursuant to Section 38.18 of the Village Code, “Ethics Ordinance”, a Cone of Silence is hereby 
imposed whereby any communications between any potential bidder, service provider, lobbyist 
or consultant and the Village’s staff and elected officials pertaining to this RFP are prohibited. 
 
Yvonne P. Hamilton, CMC  
Village Clerk 

Page 173

http://www.demandstar.com/
mailto:yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com


 

4 
 

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 
 
Below is the current schedule of the events that will take place in the procurement process. The 
Village reserves the right to make changes or alterations to the schedule as the Village 
determines is in the best interests of the public. Proposers will be notified sufficiently in 
advance of any changes or alterations in the schedule. Unless otherwise notified in writing by 
the Village, the dates indicated below for submission of items or for other actions on the part of 
a Proposer shall constitute absolute deadlines for those activities and failure to fully comply by 
the time stated shall cause a Proposer to be disqualified. 
 

Date Event 
April 2, 2017 Advertisement 

March 3, 2017 Documents Available for Public Inspection and digital copies 

April 14, 2017 10:00 AM, pre-bid meeting at: 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Commission Chambers 1st Floor, 
North Bay Village, Florida 33141. 

April 20, 2017 Last day opportunity for questions by emailing   
yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com, no later than 3:00 PM local time. 

April 28, 2017 Bid Documents Submittal due in to Village Clerk Office, no later 
than 4:00 P.M. local time. 

May 8, 2017 Technical Review Committee Meeting – 10:00 A.M. local time. 
May 19, 2017 Award Recommendation to Village Clerk and Village Manager 
June 13, 2017 Commission Public Meeting to review and confirm Award 

Recommendation 7:30 P.M. local time. 
 

Page 174

mailto:yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com


 

5 
 

 
BID/PROPOSAL SIGNATURE PAGE 

 
How to submit Proposal:  
 
It will be the sole responsibility of the Proposer to ensure that the Proposals reach North Bay 
Village, Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300, North Bay Village, Florida, 33141, 
prior to the RFP opening date and time listed. Proposals submitted by email or facsimile will 
NOT be accepted. 
 
The proposal package must contain a Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of the total amount bid for 
the 5. If alternates are offered the 5% Bid Bond shall be on the highest total bid amount. The 
security will be in the form of cash, cashier’s check, or bid bond made payable to North Bay 
Village and will be required to be submitted with the Proposal package in a separate marked 
envelope. All Bid Bonds will be returned after the contract with the successful proposer has been 
executed. 
 
The Village will require, as a condition of award the successful proposer to provide a Payment 
/Performance Bond in the amount of the contract for the entire project. This Bond will be in 
effect until after the Village has accepted the completed project and made the final payment. 
 
The below signed hereby agrees to furnish the following article(s) or services at the price(s) and 
terms stated subject to all instructions, conditions, specifications addenda, legal advertisement, 
and conditions contained in the bid. I have read all attachments including the specifications and 
fully understand what is required. By submitting this signed proposal, I will accept a contract, if 
approved by the Village and such acceptance covers all terms, conditions, and specifications of 
this bid/proposal. 
 
Submitted by:__________________________________________________________________                                                        
     (Signature)                                                       (Date) 
Name (printed)_________________________________  
Title:_________________________________________ 
Company: (Legal Registration)___________________________________________________ 
 
VENDOR, IF FOREIGN CORPORATION, SHALL BE REQUIRED TO OBTAIN A 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE, IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE §607.1501 (visit 
http://www.dos.state.fl.us/doc/). 
 
Address:______________________________________________________________________ 
City:_____________________________ State:______________________ Zip Code: ________ 
Telephone No._____________________ FAX No._________________________________ 
E-MAIL:_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Page 175



 

6 
 

 
 
VARIANCES: State any variations to specifications, terms and conditions in the space provided below or reference 
in the space provided below all variances contained on other pages of bid, attachments or bid pages. No variations or 
exceptions by the Proposer will be deemed to be part of the bid submitted unless such variation or exception is listed 
and contained within the bid documents and referenced in the space provided below. If no statement is contained in 
the below space, it is hereby implied that your bid/proposal complies with the full scope of this solicitation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 176



 

7 
 

 
SECTION 2 - INTRODUCTION/INFORMATION 

 
 

2.1.  Purpose 
 
Replacement of the existing roof tile and flat roof on the building located at 1841 Galleon Street, 
North Bay Village, Florida. The scope of work includes replacing damaged ply-board sheathing, 
drip edge material, fascia board, hip and ridge metal, removal of sky light and all other damaged 
roofing materials as required. Work is to be performed in accordance with applicable building 
code requirements. 
 
2.2.  Information or Clarification 
 
Material changes, if any, to the scope of services or bidding procedures will only be transmitted 
by written addendum. No variation in price or conditions shall be permitted based upon a claim 
of ignorance. Submission of a proposal will be considered evidence that the proposer has 
familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the work, and the equipment, materials, and 
labor required. 
 
2.3.  Eligibility: 
 
To be eligible to respond to this RFP, the proposing firm must demonstrate that they, or the 
principals assigned to the project, have successfully completed services, similar to those 
specified in the Technical Specifications/Scope of Services section of this RFP, to at least one 
agency similar in size and complexity of North Bay Village. The services need to be completed 
within the last five (5) years.  

Page 177



 

8 
 

SECTION 3 – GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
3.1. RFP Documents 

These RFP documents constitute the complete set of Proposal specifications and forms.  All 
forms and documents must be executed, sealed and submitted as provided in this RFP.  Proposals 
not submitted on the prescribed Proposal forms may be rejected.  By submitting a Proposal, the 
Proposer agrees to be subjected to all terms and conditions specified herein.  Submittal of a 
response to this RFP constitutes a binding offer by the Proposer. 
 
3.2. Taxes 

The Proposer shall not be entitled to the Village’s tax exempt benefits. 
 
3.3. Interpretations and Inquiries 

All Proposers shall carefully examine the RFP documents.  Any ambiguities or inconsistencies 
shall be brought to the attention of the Village or its agent in writing prior to the Proposal 
deadline. 
 
Any questions concerning the intent, meaning and interpretation of the RFP documents shall be 
requested in writing, via email or fax, and received by the Village no later than 3:00 PM, local 
time, on April 20, 2017. Written inquiries shall be sent with the subject line “Roof Repairs to 
1841 Galleon Street Facility”, RFP No. NBV 2017-003: 
 
Yvonne P. Hamilton, CMC, Village Clerk 
North Bay Village 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 
North Bay Village, Florida 33141 
Fax: (305) 756-7722 
Email: yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com 
 
The Village will not respond to oral inquiries. 
 
Submission of a Proposal shall serve as prima facie evidence that the Proposer has examined the 
Contract and is fully aware of all conditions affecting the provision of Services 
 
No person is authorized to give oral interpretations of, or make oral changes to, the RFP 
documents.  Therefore, oral statements shall not be binding and should not be relied upon.  Any 
interpretation of, or changes to, the RFP documents shall be made in the form of a written 
addendum to the RFP document and shall be furnished by the Village to all Proposers.  Only 
those interpretations of, or changes to, the RFP document that are made in writing and furnished 
to the Proposers by the Village may be relied upon. 
 

Page 178

mailto:tejedam@miamilakes-fl.gov


 

9 
 

3.4. Verbal Agreements 

No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of the Village, either 
before or after submittal of the Proposal, shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations 
contained in the RFP.  Any such verbal agreement or conversation shall be considered as 
unofficial information and in no way binding upon the Village or the Proposer. 
 
3.5. No Contingent Fees 

Proposer warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for the Proposer, to solicit or secure this Contract, and that it has 
not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for the Proposer, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. 
 
3.6. Independence 

On the form provided in Section 10 of this RFP, the Proposer shall list, and describe any 
relationships – professional, financial or otherwise – that it may have with the Village, its elected 
or appointed officials, its employees or agents or any of its agencies or component units for the 
past five (5) years, together with a statement explaining why such relationships do not constitute 
a conflict of interest relative to performing the Services sought in this RFP.  Additionally, the 
Proposer shall give the Village written notice of any other relationships – professional, financial 
or otherwise – that it enters into with the Village, its elected or appointed officials, its employees 
or agents or any of its agencies or component units during the period of the Contract. 
 
3.7. No Collusion 

More than one Proposal from an individual, firm, partnership, corporation or association under 
the same or different names will not be considered.  Reasonable grounds for believing that a 
Proposer is involved in more than one Proposal for the same work will be cause for rejection of 
all Proposals in which such Proposers are believed to be involved. 
 
3.8. Assignment; Non-transferability of Proposal 

Proposals shall not be assigned or transferred.  A Proposer who is, or may be, purchased by or 
merged with any other corporate entity during any stage of the Proposal process, through to and 
including awarding of and execution of a Contract, is subject to having its Proposal disqualified 
as a result of such transaction.  The Village Manager shall determine whether a Proposal is to be 
disqualified in such instances. 
 
If, at any time during the Proposal process, filings, notices or like documents are submitted to any 
regulatory agency concerning the potential acquisition of Proposer, or the sale of a controlling 
interest in the Proposer, or any similar transaction, Proposer shall immediately disclose such 
information to the Village.  Failure to do so may result in the Proposal being disqualified, at the 
Village Manager’s sole discretion. 
 

Page 179



 

10 
 

3.9. Legal Requirements 

Proposers are required to comply with all provisions of federal, state, county and local laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations that are applicable to the Services being offered in this RFP.  
Lack of knowledge of the Proposer shall in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility, or 
constitute a cognizable defense against the legal effects thereof. 
 
3.10. Familiarity with Laws and Ordinances 

The submission of a Proposal on the Services requested herein shall be considered as a 
representation that the Proposer is familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules 
and regulations which affect those engaged or employed in the provision of such Services, or 
equipment used in the provision of such Services, or which in any way affects the conduct of the 
provision of such Services; and no plea of misunderstanding will be considered on account of 
ignorance thereof.  If the Proposer discovers any provisions in the RFP documents that are 
contrary to or inconsistent with any law, ordinance, or regulation, he or she shall report it to the 
Village Clerk in writing. 
 
3.11. Advertising 

In submitting a Proposal, Proposer agrees not to use the results therefrom as a part of any 
Advertising or Proposer sponsored publicity without the express written approval of the Village 
Manager or designee. 
 
3.12. Award of Contract 

Award shall be made to the responsible Proposer whose proposal is determined in writing to be 
the most advantageous to the Village, taking into consideration price and the evaluation factors 
set forth in the request for proposals. No other factors or criteria shall be used in the evaluation. 
 
3.13. Execute Contract 

The terms, conditions and provisions in this RFP shall be included and incorporated in the final 
Contract between the Village and the successful Proposer(s).  Following ranking of the most 
qualified Proposers and selection by the Village Commission, the successful Proposer(s) shall, 
within ten (10) days of receipt of a written notice of the Award of the Contract, deliver to the 
Village a fully executed Contract, The required payment/Performance Bond and all requested 
certificates of insurance.  
 
The final Contract shall be subject to the approval of the Village Manager in his or her sole 
discretion, and approved as to form and legality by the Village Attorney. The order of precedence 
will be the Contract, the RFP Documents, the Proposer’s response and general law.  Any and all 
legal action necessary to interpret or enforce the Contract will be governed by the laws of 
Florida.  Venue shall be proper exclusively in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 
 

Page 180



 

11 
 

3.14. Facilities 

The Village Manager or designee reserves the right to inspect each Proposer’s facilities at any 
reasonable time, during normal working hours, without prior notice to determine that the 
Proposer has a bona fide place of business, and is a responsible Proposer. 
 
3.15. Withdrawal or Revision of Proposal Prior to and After Opening 

A Proposer may withdraw its Proposal at any time before the proposals are opened. No Proposer 
may withdraw its Proposal within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days after the Proposal 
opening date. 
 
3.16. Village’s Exclusive Rights 

The Village Manager reserves the exclusive rights to: 
 

1. Waive any deficiency or irregularity in the selection process; 

2. Accept or reject any or all Proposals in part or in whole; 

3. Request additional information as appropriate; or 

4. Reject any or all submittals if found to be in the best interest of the Village. 

By submitting a Proposal for the Services, all Proposers acknowledge and agree that no 
enforceable Contract arises until the Village Commission approves a Contract with the selected 
Proposer.  
 
3.17. Addenda 

The Village reserves the right to issue addenda.  Each Proposer shall acknowledge receipt of such 
addenda on the form provided herein.  In the event any Proposer fails to acknowledge receipt of 
such addenda, his/her Proposal shall nevertheless be construed as though the addenda had been 
received and acknowledged, and the submission of his/her Proposal shall constitute 
acknowledgment of receipt of all addenda, whether or not received by him/her.  It is the 
responsibility of each prospective Proposer to verify that he/she has received all addenda issued 
before depositing the Proposal with the Village. 
 
3.18. Review of the RFP Documents 

By the submission of a Proposal to perform the Services, the Proposer certifies that a careful 
review of the RFP documents has taken place and that the Proposer is fully informed and 
understands the requirements of the RFP documents and the quality and quantity of service to be 
performed. 
 

Page 181



 

12 
 

3.19. Adjustment/Changes/Deviations 

No adjustments, changes or deviations to the RFP will be accepted unless the conditions or 
specifications of the RFP expressly so provide. 
 
3.20. Public Records 

Upon award recommendation or thirty (30) days after Proposal opening, whichever is earlier, any 
material submitted in response to this RFP will become a “public record” and shall be subject to 
public disclosure consistent with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Record Law).  Proposers 
must claim the applicable exemptions to disclosure provided by law in their response to the RFP 
by identifying materials to be protected, and must state the reasons why such exclusion from 
public disclosure is necessary and legal.  The Village reserves the right to make all final 
determination(s) of the applicability of the Florida Public Records Law. 
 
3.21. Subcontracting 

No subcontracting shall be permitted, except with the prior approval of the Village Manager, 
which shall be at his or her sole and absolute discretion.  A list of all such subcontractors shall be 
included in the Proposal.  If additional subcontractors are to be used during the term of the 
Contract, other than those submitted in the Proposal, a list of such subcontractors shall be 
provided to the Village Manager, subject to his or her approval. 
 
3.22. Public Entities Crime 

A person or affiliate as defined in Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, who or which has been 
placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the Florida Department of Management 
Services following a conviction for a public entity crime, may not submit a Proposal on an 
Contract to provide any goods or services to the Village and may not transact business with the 
Village in an amount set forth in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a 
period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 
By submitting a response to this RFP, Proposer certifies that it is qualified under Section 
287.133, Florida Statutes, to provide the Services set forth in this RFP. 
 
3.23. Non-Collusion Affidavit 

The Proposer shall include the Non-Collusion Affidavit as set forth in the form provided in this 
RFP and as described in this RFP.  Proposer’s failure to include the affidavit may result in 
disqualification. 

Page 182



 

13 
 

SECTION 4 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
 

 
4.1. General Conditions 
 
RFP General Conditions are included and made a part of this RFP. 
 
4.2. Variances 
 
While the Village allows Contractors to take variances to the RFP terms, conditions, and 
specifications, the number and extent of variances taken will be considered in determining 
proposal responsiveness and in allocating proposal evaluation points.  
 
4.3. RFP Documents 
 
The Contractor shall examine this RFP carefully. Ignorance of the requirements will not relieve 
the Contractor from liability and obligations under the Contract. 
 
4.4. Proposers’ Costs 
 
The Village shall not be liable for any costs incurred by proposers in responding to this RFP. 
 
4.5. Proposal Security 
 
The proposal package must contain a Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of the total amount bid for 
the project. If alternates are offered, the 5% Bid Bond shall be on the highest total bid amount. 
The security will be in the form of cash, cashier’s check, or bid bond made payable to North Bay 
Village and will be required to be submitted with the Proposal package in a separate marked 
envelope. All Bid Bonds will be returned after the contract with the successful proposer has 
executed a contract for the work. 
 
The Village will require, as a condition of award the successful proposer to provide a Payment 
/Performance Bond in the amount of the contract for the entire project. This Bond will be in 
effect until after the Village has accepted the completed project and made the final payment. 
Should the Proposer refuse to continue with the development of its Proposal, refuse to enter into 
the Contract contained in this RFP, or fail to furnish such bond or check, the amount of the 
Proposal security shall be forfeited to the Village as liquidated damages, not as a penalty.  
Proposals not accompanied by the proper Proposal security shall be deemed non-responsive and 
will not be considered.   
 
Default of Proposer shall occur upon the failure of the Proposer to deliver within the time 
required by the RFP, including the executed Agreement, and any performance and payment 
bonds required by the RFP and the Agreement.  Bid Bond for the awarded Proposer will be 
returned following the execution of the Contract. 
 

Page 183



 

14 
 

4.6. Approved Equal Or Alternate Product Proposals 
 
The Technical Specifications contained in this RFP are to be used as a reference only and are not 
to be considered of a proprietary nature. These specifications represent a level of quality and 
features which are desired by North Bay Village.  
 
The proposer must state clearly in his proposal pages any variance to the specifications. If 
proposing an approved equal or alternate product, it will be the proposer's responsibility to 
provide adequate information in his proposal to enable the Village to ensure that the proposal 
meets the required criteria. If adequate information is not submitted with the proposal, it may be 
rejected. 
 
The Village will be the sole judge in determining if the product proposed qualifies as approved 
equal. The Village reserves the right to award to that proposal which will best serve the interest 
of the Village as determined by the Village. The Village further reserves the right to waive minor 
variations to specifications and in the bidding process. 
 
4.7. Contract Period & Warranty 
 
The resulting contract will be effective upon execution. The contract for the services should 
include initial warranty of all provided services and products and a minimum of a five (5) year 
warranty.  
 
4.8. Invoices/Payment 
 
Payments will be made based upon work completed.  Payment shall be made by the 15th of the 
month following receipt of the Contractor’s invoice for the services. 
  
4.9. Deletion Or Modification Of Services 
 
The Village reserves the right to delete any portion of this Contract at any time without cause, 
and if such right is exercised by the Village, the total fee shall be reduced in the same ratio as the 
estimated cost of the work deleted bears to the estimated cost of the work originally planned. If 
work has already been accomplished on the portion of the Contract to be deleted, the Contractor 
shall be paid for the deleted portion on the basis of the estimated percentage of completion of 
such portion. 
 
If the Contractor and the Village agree on modifications or revisions to the task elements, after 
the Village has approved work to begin on a particular task or project, and a budget has been 
established for that task or project, the Contractor will submit a revised budget to the Village for 
approval prior to proceeding with the work. 
 

Page 184



 

15 
 

4.10. Additional Items 
 
The Village may require additional items of a similar nature, but not specifically listed in the 
contract. The Contractor agrees to provide such items, and shall provide the Village prices on 
such additional items based upon a formula or method which is the same or similar to that used 
in establishing the prices in his proposal. If the price(s) offered are not acceptable to the Village, 
and the situation cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of the Village, the Village reserves the 
right to procure those items from other vendors or to cancel the contract upon giving the 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice. 
 
4.11. Independent Contractor 
 
The Contractor is an independent contractor under this Contract.  Personal services provided by 
the Contractor shall be by employees of the Contractor and subject to supervision by the 
Contractor, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the Village. Personnel policies, tax 
responsibilities, social security, health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies and 
other similar administrative procedures applicable to services rendered under this Contract shall 
be those of the Contractor. 
 
4.12. Uncontrollable Circumstances ("Force Majeure") 
 
The Village and Contractor will be excused from the performance of their respective obligations 
under this contract when and to the extent that their performance is delayed or prevented by any 
circumstances beyond their control including, fire, flood, explosion, strikes or other labor 
disputes, act of God or public emergency, war, riot, civil commotion, malicious damage, act or 
omission of any governmental authority, delay or failure or shortage of any type of transportation, 
equipment, or service from a public utility needed for their performance, provided that: 
 
a. the non performing party gives the other party prompt written notice describing the 

particulars of the Force Majeure including, but not limited to, the nature of the occurrence 
and its expected duration, and continues to furnish timely reports with respect thereto during 
the period of the Force Majeure; 

b. the excuse of performance is of no greater scope and of no longer duration than is required by 
the Force Majeure; 

c. no obligations of either party that arose before the Force Majeure causing the excuse of 
performance are excused as a result of the Force Majeure; and 

d. the non performing party uses its best efforts to remedy its inability to perform. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, performance shall not be excused under this Section for a period in 
excess of two (2) months, provided that in extenuating circumstances, the Village may excuse 
performance for a longer term. Economic hardship of the Contractor will not constitute Force 
Majeure. The term of the contract shall be extended by a period equal to that during which either 
party's performance is suspended under this Section. 
 

Page 185



 

16 
 

4.13. Insurance  
 
The contractor shall furnish proof of Worker’s Compensation Insurance, General Liability 
Insurance and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. The coverage is to remain in 
force at all times during the contract period. The following minimum insurance coverage is 
required. The policy(ies) must include Employer’s Liability with minimum limits of 
$1,000,000.00 for each accident.  The Village is to be added as an “additional insured” with 
relation to General Liability and Automobile Insurance. Any costs for adding the Village as 
“additional insured” will be at the contractor’s expense. 
 
a. Workers Compensation: Notwithstanding FS 440.055, any firm performing work on behalf of 

North Bay Village must provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for the benefit of its 
employees.  

 
Exceptions and exemptions can only be made if they are in accordance with Florida Statute.  
 
b. Comprehensive General Liability with minimum limits of one million dollars 

($1,000,000.00) each occurrence; two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) general aggregate 
limit. Such certificate shall list the Village as an additional insured. 

 
NOTE: If Comprehensive General Liability limits are less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000.00), the sum of Comprehensive General Liability limits and Excess Liability 
limits must equal no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00). 

 
c. Automobile Liability must equal no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) for each 

occurrence. The Contractor shall provide to the Village original certificates of such coverage 
prior to engaging in any activities under this contract. Certificates shall have no less than 
thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation. No work can be started until the certificate is 
submitted and approved by the Village Manager. 

 
In the event that you are the successful proposer, you will be required to provide a certificate 
naming the Village as an “additional insured” for both General Liability and Automobile 
coverages. 
 
Certificate holder should be stated as follows: 
North Bay Village 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300                               
North Bay Village Florida 33141 
 
4.15. Bonds 
 
The successful bidder shall provide with the executed contract or within five (5) days of the 
Effective Date of Contract, a cash bond, letter of credit or Payment/Performance bond in an 
amount equal to the total of the contract amount in a form satisfactory to the Village Attorney.  
 
 

Page 186



 

17 
 

The surety providing such Bonds must be licensed authorized and admitted to do business in the 
State of Florida and must be listed in the Federal Register (Dept. of Treasury, Circular 570).   
 
The cost of the premiums for such Bonds shall be at no cost to the VILLAGE.  If notice of any 
change affecting the work under the Contract, the Contract Prices or Term or any of the 
provisions of the RFP Documents is required by the provisions of any Bond to be given to a 
surety, the giving of any such notice shall be CONTRACTOR’S sole responsibility. 
 
4.16. Lobbying Activities 
 
ALL BIDDERS/PROPOSERS PLEASE NOTE: Any bidder or proposer submitting a response to 
this solicitation must comply, if applicable, with North Bay Village Ordinances, Lobbying 
Activities. Copies of Ordinances may be obtained from the Village Clerk’s Office. The ordinance 
may also be viewed on the Village's website or at www.municode.com.  
 
4.17. Contract Administrator 
 
The Village may designate a Contract Administrator whose principal duties shall be Liaison with 
Contractor to coordinate and approve all work under the contract. 
 
Resolve any disputes. Assure consistency and quality of Contractor's performance. 
 
Schedule and conduct Contractor performance evaluations and document findings. 
 
Review and approve for payment all invoices for work performed or items delivered. 
 
4.18. Contractor Performance Reviews And Ratings 
 
The Village Contract Administrator may develop a Contractor performance evaluation report at 
the discretion of the Village Manager. This report shall be used to periodically review and rate 
the Contractor's performance under the contract with performance rating as follows: 
 

 Excellent - far exceeds requirements. 
 Good - Exceeds requirements 
 Fair - Just meets requirements. 
 Poor - does not meet all requirements and Contractor is subject to penalty provisions 

under the contact.  
 Noncompliance – does not comply with requirements or continued poor performance 

after notice or a performance level that does not meet a significant portion of the 
requirements.  This rating makes the Contractor subject to the default or cancellation for 
cause provisions of the contract.  

 
The report shall also list all discrepancies found during the review period. The Contractor shall 
be provided with a copy of the report, and may respond in writing if he takes exception to the 
report or wishes to comment on the report. Contractor performance reviews and subsequent 
reports will be used in determining the suitability of contract extension. 

Page 187



 

18 
 

4.19. Bid Tabulations/Intent To Award 
 
Notice of Intent to Award Contract/Bid, resulting from the Village’s Formal solicitation process, 
requiring Village Commission action is available at Village Hall. Tabulations of receipt of those 
parties responding to a formal solicitation may be found at Village Hall or any interested party 
may call the Village Clerk at (305) 756-7171. 
 

Page 188



 

19 
 

SECTION 5 – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS/SCOPE OF SERVICE 
 
 
5.1      Purpose 
 
 
North Bay Village is requesting proposals from qualified vendors/contractors to replacement the 
existing roof tile and flat roof on the building located at 1841 Galleon Street, North Bay Village, 
Florida. The scope of work includes replacing damaged ply-board sheathing, drip edge material, 
fascia board, hip and ridge metal, removal of sky light and all other damaged roofing materials as 
required. Work is to be performed in accordance with applicable building code requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 189



 

20 
 

5.2  Scope of Services 
 
 
ALL DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE AND MUST BE VERIFIED IN THE 
FIELD PRIOR TO SUBMITTING BID.  
 
Replacement of the existing roof tile and flat roof on the building located at 1841 Galleon Street, 
North Bay Village, Florida. The scope of work includes replacing damaged ply-board sheathing, 
drip edge material, fascia board, hip and ridge metal, removal of sky light and all other damaged 
roofing materials as required. Work is to be performed in accordance with applicable building 
code requirements. 

Page 190



 

21 
 

SECTION 6- EVALUATION PROCEDURES 
 
 
6.1 Selection Committee 
 
Proposals submitted will be evaluated by a Selection Committee. 
 
The following criteria will be used to evaluable proposal responses and to make a 
recommendation to the Village Commission. 
 
1. Mandatory elements 
 
 a) The vendor contractor is independent and licensed to practice in the State of Florida. 
 

b) The vendor/contractor has no conflict of interest with regard to any other work 
performed by the vendor/contractor for North Bay Village. 

 
 d) The vendor/contractor has a record of quality work. 
  

e) The vendor/contractor adheres to the instructions in this RFP for preparation and 
submission of the proposal. 

 
2. Pre-Requisite Qualifications 
 

Proposers submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP must, at a minimum, meet the 
following Pre-Requisite Qualifications.  All requested documentation and/or information 
must be provided in the Proposal to confirm that the Firm has satisfied all of the Pre-
Requisite Qualifications.  Vendor/Contractors that do not meet the following 
qualifications shall be deemed non-responsive. 

 
Vendor/contractor shall be in good standing with all regulatory departments of the State 
of Florida. 

 
Vendor/contractor shall have at least one operating office located within Florida  

 
3. Evaluation Criteria: 
 

a) Expertise and Experience (Maximum Points - 30) 
(i.e. the firm's past experience and performance on similar projects of comparable size 
and complexity.) 

 
b) Materials warranty  (Maximum Points - 20) 

 
c) Responses of references (Maximum Points - 10) 

 
c) Cost (Maximum Points – 40)  

Page 191



 

22 
 

Evaluation of proposals will be conducted by an evaluation committee of qualified Village Staff, 
or other persons selected by the Village Manager. It may be a two-step process. In step one the 
committee will evaluate all responsive proposals based upon the information and references 
contained in the proposals as submitted. The committee will score and rank all responsive 
proposals and determine a number one proposer. In the event the committee cannot identify a 
number one proposer, it may give further consideration to all responsive proposals received.  
Proposers may be required to provide an oral presentation by appearing before the Evaluation 
Committee or by conference telephone call for clarification purposes only, with the finalists and 
re-score and re-rank the finalists proposals. Information and references submitted will be 
considered in the award.  The committee will then make a recommendation to the Village 
Manager for final recommendation to the Village Commission for award. 
 
The Village may require additional information and Proposers agree to furnish such information. 
 
The Village reserves the right to award the contract to that Proposer who will best serve the 
interest of the Village. The Village reserves the right, based upon its deliberations and in its 
opinion, to accept or reject any or all proposals. The Village also reserves the right to waive 
minor irregularities or variations to the specifications and in the bidding process. 

Page 192



 

23 
 

SECTION 7 - REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

All proposals must be submitted as specified on the proposal pages which follow. Any 
attachments must be clearly identified. To be considered, the proposal must respond to all parts 
of the RFP. Any other information thought to be relevant, but not applicable to the enumerated 
categories, should be provided as an appendix to the proposal. If publications are supplied by a 
proposer to respond to a requirement, the response should include reference to the document 
number and page number. This format will provide a quick reference for the evaluators. 
Proposals not providing this reference will be considered to have no reference material included 
in the additional documents. 
 
Proposals must be submitted in a sealed package with the RFP number, due and open dates, and 
RFP title (NBV RFP 2017-003) clearly marked on the outside. If more than one package is 
submitted, they should be marked 1 of 2, etc. 
 
Proposals will be received by mail or hand-delivered to the Village Clerk’s Office, 1666 
Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300, North Bay Village, FL, 33141 on or prior to April 3, 2017 no 
later than 3:00 pm. The proposal shall be signed by a representative who is authorized to 
contractually bind the Contractor. 
 
PROPOSERS MUST SUBMIT AN IDENTIFIED UNBOUND ORIGINAL DOCUMENT PLUS 
SIX (6) BOUND COPIES AND ONE (1) CD ROM OF THE PROPOSAL PAGES INCLUDING 
ANY ATTACHMENTS.THE ABOVE REQUIREMENT TOTALS EIGHT (8) COPIES OF 
YOUR PROPOSAL. 
 

Page 193



 

24 
 

SECTION 8 – TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 
 
 
The following issues should be fully responded to in your proposal in concise narrative form. 
Each issue should be referenced and be presented in the following order:  
 
Tab 1: Proposal Signature Page  
 
Tab 2: Ability to Meet the Project Schedule 
Include a proposed schedule that shows how the Contractor would provide services within the 
time frame required. 
 
Tab 3: State number of years’ experience the proposer has had in providing similar services. If 
services provided differs from the one presented in your proposal, please delineate such 
differences. If your company has not provided similar services in the past, explain fully why you 
consider your company qualified to perform this service for North Bay Village. 
 
Tab 4: Proposer to provide a minimum of three (3) references for which similar services have 
been used in this area. If additional space is required, include as an appendix to RFP 2017-003 
response. If additional references are provided, please attach this information as an appendix to 
your RFP response.  
 
Description of services rendered:  
During the month(s)/year(s):  
Name of Governmental Agency (Village or county): 
Principal Contact Person: 
Telephone Number: 
Fax Number: 
Email Address: 
 
If you have ever failed to complete work awarded to you, explain where and why. 
 
Tab 5: List any North Bay Village or other governmental agency with which the proposer has had 
contracts or agreements during the past three (3) years. 
 
Tab 6: Provide a summary of any litigation filed against Proposer, principals, or individuals 
employed by the Proposal in the past three (3) years which is related to the services the Proposer 
provides in the regular course of business. The summary shall state the nature of the litigation, a 
brief description of the case, the outcome or projected outcome, and the monetary amounts 
involved. 
 
Tab 7: Proposer please quote your company’s rates for providing additional services 
 
 
 
 

Page 194



 

25 
 

 
Tab 8: Attach copies of all Insurance Certificates for our review. 
 
Tab 9: Any additional information. The proposer understands that the information contained in 
these Proposal Pages is to be relied upon by the Village in awarding the proposed Contract, and 
such information is warranted by the proposer to be true. The proposer agrees to furnish such 
additional information, prior to acceptance of any proposal, relating to the qualifications of the 
proposer, as may be required by the Village. 
 
COMPLETE AND RETURN THE REQUIRED NUMBER OF PROPOSAL PAGES AND 
ATTACHMENTS. 
 

Page 195



 

26 
 

SECTION 9 – CONE OF SILENCE 
 

 
9.1 Cone of Silence 
 
You are hereby advised that this Request for Proposal No. NBV RFP 2017-002 is subject to the 
“Cone of Silence” in accordance with Section 38.18 of the North Bay Village Code of 
Ordinances. A proposer who violates these provisions shall not be considered for this Request for 
Proposal in addition to any other applicable penalties. 

§ 38.18 - Cone of Silence.  

(A) Contracts for the provision of goods and services. 

(1) "Cone of Silence" is hereby defined to mean a prohibition on: 

a.  any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ, or bid between a 
potential vendor, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and the 
Village's professional staff including, but not limited to, the Village Manager 
and his or her staff;  

b. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ, or bid between the 
Mayor or Village Commissioners and any member of the Village's 
professional staff including, but not limited to, the Village Manager and his or 
her staff;  

c. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between a 
potential vendor, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and any 
member of the selection committee therefor;  

d. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between the 
Mayor, Village Commissioners and any member of the selection committee;  

e. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between a 
potential vendor, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and the 
Mayor or Village Commissioners; and  

f. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between any 
member of the Village's professional staff and any member of the selection 
committee.  

The Village Manager and the Chairperson of the selection committee may 
communicate about a particular selection committee recommendation, but 
only after the committee has submitted an award recommendation to the 
Village Manager and provided that should any change occur in the committee 
recommendation, the content of the communication and of the corresponding 
change shall be described in writing and filed by the Village Manager with the 
Village Clerk and be included in any recommendation memorandum 
submitted by the Village Manager to the Village Commission.  

Page 196



 

27 
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Cone of Silence shall not apply to:  

a. communications with the Village Attorney and his or her staff; 

b. duly noticed site visits to determine the competency of bidders 
regarding a particular bid during the time period between the opening of 
bids and the time the Village Manager makes his or her written 
recommendation;  

c. any emergency procurement of goods or services; 

d. communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between any 
person and the contracting officer responsible for administering the 
procurement process for the RFP, RFQ or bid, provided the 
communication is limited strictly to matters of process or procedure 
already contained in the corresponding solicitation document.  

(2) Procedure. 

a. A Cone of Silence shall be imposed upon each RFP, RFQ and bid after the 
advertisement of the RFP, RFQ or bid. At the time of imposition of the Cone 
of Silence, the Village Manager or his or her designee shall provide for public 
notice of the Cone of Silence. The Village Manager shall issue a written 
notice to the affected departments, file a copy of the notice with the Village 
Clerk, with a copy to the Mayor and each Village Commissioner, and shall 
include in any public solicitation for goods and services a statement disclosing 
the requirements of this ordinance. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this section, the imposition of a Cone of Silence on a particular RFP, RFQ or 
bid shall not preclude staff from obtaining industry comment or performing 
market research, provided all communications related thereto between a 
potential vendor, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and any 
member of the Village's professional staff including, but not limited to, the 
Village Manager and his or her staff, are in writing or are made at a duly 
noticed public meeting.  

 

b. The Cone of Silence shall terminate at the time the Village Manager makes 
his or her written recommendation to the Village Commission; provided, 
however, that if the Village Commission refers the Village Manager's 
recommendation back to the Village Manager or staff for further review, the 
Cone of Silence shall be re-imposed until the time as the Village Manager 
makes a subsequent written recommendation.  

 

 

 

Page 197



 

28 
 

(3) Exceptions. The provisions of this ordinance shall not apply to oral 
communications at pre-bid conferences, oral presentations before selection 
committees, contract negotiations during any duly noticed public meeting, public 
presentations made to the Village Commission during any duly noticed public 
meeting or communications in writing at any time with any Village employee, 
official or member of the Village Commission unless specifically prohibited by the 
applicable RFP, RFQ or bid documents.  

The bidder or proposer shall file a copy of any written communication with the 
Village Clerk. The Village Clerk shall make copies available to any person upon 
request.  

(B) Penalties. In addition to the penalties provided in this chapter and Miami-Dade 
County Code Section 2-11.1 (s) and (v), violation of this section by a particular bidder or 
proposer shall render any RFP award, RFQ award or bid award to the bidder or proposer 
voidable. Any person who violates a provision of this ordinance shall be prohibited from 
serving on a Village competitive selection committee. In addition to any other penalty 
provided by law, violation of any provision of this ordinance by a Village employee shall 
subject the employee to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. Additionally, 
any person who has personal knowledge of a violation of this ordinance shall report the 
violation to the State Attorney and, or, may file a complaint with the Ethics 
Commission.  

 

Page 198



 

29 
 

SECTION 10 – QUALIFICATION FORMS 
 

 
The forms located in this section of the RFP shall be included in the Sealed Proposal.  Forms not 
completed in full may result in disqualification. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(This space intentionally left blank) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 199



 

30 
 

FORM 1 
PROPOSAL PRICING SHEET 

 
 
Provide a proposal containing a total price to perform the project and services as described in this 
request for proposals.  The total all-inclusive maximum price bid is to contain all direct and 
indirect costs including all out-of-pocket expenses.  The selected vendor agrees not to exceed this 
amount.  
 

ROOF REPAIRS TO 1841 GALLEON STREET FACILITY 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 

 
The price below represents the full cost to North Bay Village for replacement of the existing roof 
tile and flat roof on the building located at 1841 Galleon Street, North Bay Village, Florida. The 
scope of work includes replacing damaged ply-board sheathing, drip edge material, fascia board, 
hip and ridge metal, removal of sky light and all other damaged roofing materials as required. 
Work is to be performed in accordance with applicable building code requirements. 
 
TOTAL COST $ 
 
Taxpayer Identification Number:  
_______________________________________________________ 
 
BIDDER: 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

   (Company Name) 
 

________________________________________________ 
         (Signature of Authorized Representative) 
 
________________________________________________ 
       (Printed Name and Title) 
 

Page 200



 

31 
 

FORM 2 
PROPOSER’S STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION 

 
 

1. Full Name of Business Concern (Proposer): 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Principal Business Address: 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
2. Principal Contact Person(s): 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
3. Form of Business Concern (Corporation, Partnership, Joint Venture, Other): 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Provide names of partners or officers as appropriate and indicate if the individual has the 

authority to sign in name of Proposer.  Provide proof of the ability of the individuals so 
named to legally bind the Proposer. 

 
Name    Address     Title 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
If a corporation, in what state incorporated:         
Date Incorporated:            

                                     Month                                        Day                                        Year 
If a Joint Venture or Partnership, date of agreement: _______________________________ 

 
5. List all firms participating in this project (including subcontractors, etc.): 
 

Name    Address     Title 
1.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
2.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Page 201



 

32 
 

 
6. Outline specific areas of responsibility for each firm listed in Question 5.  
 

1.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
2.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
7. Licenses: 
 

a. County or Municipal Occupational License No. 
________________________________________ 
                        (Attach Copy) 

 
b. Business Tax Receipt Classification: 

________________________________________ 
                        

c. Business Tax Receipt Expiration Date: 
________________________________________ 
                         

d. Federal I.D. No: 
________________________________________ 
 

Page 202



 

33 
 

FORM 3 
PERSONNEL 

The Village requires that the proposer include the resumes of the principle of the 
company and any manager or superintendent that will be providing services under the 
specification of NBV 2017-002. Resumes should be provided in the following format, 
however, additional information may be provided at the option of the Proposer. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A. Name & Title 

 
B. Years of Experience with this company:  

With Other Similar companies: 
 

C. Education: 
 

Degree(s) 
 
Year/Specialization 

 
D. Professional References:  (List a minimum of 3) 

 
E. Other Relevant Experience and Qualifications 

 
F. Attach applicable licenses for each individual performing services pursuant to this 

Contract. 

Page 203



 

34 
 

FORM 4 
REFERENCES 

 
The Proposer shall provide a minimum of three (3) references of public and or private agencies 
presently being served by the Proposer with similar services to those being proposed in this 
Proposal. 
 
1. Name of  Agency:___________________________________________________ 
 Address:________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Phone Number:           
 Principal Contact Person(s):         
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Year Contract Initiated:  ______________ 
2. Name of  Agency:         
 Address:           
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Phone Number:           
 Principal Contact Person(s):         
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Year Contract Initiated:  ______________ 
3. Name of Agency:         
 Address:           
 _______________________________________________________________________  
 Phone Number:           
 Principal Contact Person(s):         
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Year Contract Initiated:  ______________ 
 

Page 204



 

35 
 

FORM 5 
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 

 
 The undersigned vendor/contractor (company) in accordance with Chapter 287.087, 
Florida Statutes, hereby certifies that _______________________________________ does: 
                                                            (Name of Company) 
1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacturing, distribution, 

dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace 
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such 
prohibition. 

 
2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business’s policy 

of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and 
employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for 
drug abuse violations. 

 
3. Give each employee engaged in providing the contractual services that are under 

consideration a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 
 

4. In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employee that, as a condition of 
working on the contractual services that are under consideration, the employee will abide 
by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of 
guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of Chapter 893 or of any controlled substance 
law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later 
than five (5) days after such conviction. 

 
5. Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance 

or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee’s community, by any 
employee who is so convicted. 

 
6. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 

implementation of this section. 

Page 205



 

36 
 

 
7. As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with 

the above requirements. 
 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature (Blue ink only) 
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name 
_____________________________________________ 
Title 
_____________________________________________ 
Date 
 
Witness my hand and official notary seal/stamp at ____________________________ the day 
and year written above 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 
 
BEFORE ME, an officer duly authorized by law to administer oaths and take 
acknowledgments, personally appeared _____________________________________ as 
______________________________________, of _________________________________, 
an organization authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and acknowledged 
executing the foregoing Form as the proper official of _______________________ for the 
use and purposes mentioned in the Form and affixed the official seal of the corporation, and 
that the instrument is the act and deed of that corporation.  He/She is personally known to me 
or has produced __________________________________ as identification. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, I have set my hand and official seal at in the State and 
County aforesaid on this ______ day of ________________________, 201__. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: 

Page 206



 

37 
 

FORM 6 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDA 

 
The Proposer hereby acknowledges the receipt of the following addenda issued by the Village 
and incorporated into and made part of this RFP.  In the event the Proposer fails to include 
any such addenda in the table below, submission of this form shall constitute 
acknowledgment of receipt of all addenda, whether or not received by him/her. 
 

 
ADDENDUM 
   NUMBER 

    
    DATE 
RECEIVED 

        
        PRINT NAME 

    
   TITLE 

         
      SIGNATURE 
(BLUE INK ONLY) 
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 207



 

38 
 

FORM 7 
INDEPENDENCE AFFIDAVIT 

 
The undersigned individual, being duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
1. He/She is _____________________________ of ____________________________, the 

Proposer that has submitted the attached Proposal; 
 
2.        (a) Below is a list and description of any relationships, professional, financial or 

otherwise that Proposer may have with the Village, its elected or appointed 
officials, its employees or agents or any of its agencies or component units for the 
past five (5) years. 

(b) Additionally, the Proposer agrees and understands that Proposer shall give the 
Village written notice of any other relationships professional, financial or 
otherwise that Proposer enters into with the Village, its elected or appointed 
officials, its employees or agents or any of its agencies or component units during 
the period of the Contract. 

 
(If paragraph 2(a) above does not apply, please indicate by stating, “not applicable” in the space 
below.) 

 
3. I have attached an additional page to this form explaining why such relationships do not 

constitute a conflict of interest relative to performing the services sought in the RFP. 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Signature (Blue ink only) 
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name 
_____________________________________________ 
Title 
_____________________________________________ 
Date 

 
[Acknowledgment on following page.] 
 

Page 208



 

39 
 

Witness my hand and official notary seal/stamp at ____________________________ the day 
and year written above 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 
 
BEFORE ME, an officer duly authorized by law to administer oaths and take 
acknowledgments, personally appeared _____________________________________ as 
______________________________________, of _________________________________, 
an organization authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and acknowledged 
executing the foregoing Affidavit as the proper official of _______________________ for 
the use and purposes mentioned in the Affidavit and affixed the official seal of the 
corporation, and that the instrument is the act and deed of that corporation.  He/She is 
personally known to me or has produced __________________________________ as 
identification. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, I have set my hand and official seal at in the State and 
County aforesaid on this ______ day of ________________________, 201__. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 209



 

40 
 

FORM 8 
CERTIFICATION TO ACCURACY OF PROPOSAL 

 
 

PROPOSER, by executing this Form, hereby certifies and attests that all Forms, Affidavits and 
documents related thereto that it has enclosed in the Proposal in support of its Proposal are true 
and accurate.  Failure by the PROPOSER to attest to the truth and accuracy of such Forms, 
Affidavits and documents shall result in the Proposal being deemed non-responsive and such 
Proposal will not be considered. 
The undersigned individual, being duly sworn, deposes and says that: 

1. He/She is _________________________ of ________________________, the 
PROPOSER that has submitted the attached Proposal; 
 

2. He/She is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached 
Proposal and of all Forms, Affidavits and documents submitted in support of such 
Proposal; 

 
3. All Forms, Affidavits and documents submitted in support of this Proposal and 

included in this Proposal are true and accurate; 
 

4. No information that should have been included in such Forms, Affidavits and 
documents has been omitted; and 
 

5. No information that is included in such Forms, Affidavits or documents is false or 
misleading. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature (Blue ink only) 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Title 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Date 
 
[Acknowledgment on following page.] 

 

Page 210



 

41 
 

Witness my hand and official notary seal/stamp at ____________________________ the day 
and year written above 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 
 
 
BEFORE ME, an officer duly authorized by law to administer oaths and take 
acknowledgments, personally appeared _____________________________________ as 
______________________________________, of _________________________________, 
an organization authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and acknowledged 
executing the foregoing Form as the proper official of _______________________ for the 
use and purposes mentioned in the Form and affixed the official seal of the corporation, and 
that the instrument is the act and deed of that corporation.  He/She is personally known to me 
or has produced __________________________________ as identification. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, I have set my hand and official seal at in the State and 
County aforesaid on this ______ day of ________________________, 201__. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: 
 

Page 211



 

42 
 

 
FORM 9 

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133 (3)(a), 
FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 

 
THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY 
PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS. 
 
This sworn statement is submitted to the NORTH BAY VILLAGE by: 

 
 __________________________________________________________________________ 
                             [print individual’s name and title] 
 
for________________________________________________________________________ 
                 [print name of entity submitting sworn statement] 
 
whose business address is ____________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is 
____________________ (If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the 
individual signing this sworn statement: ______________________________________). 
 
 
1. I understand that a “public entity crime” as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(g), Florida 

Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly 
related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political 
subdivision of any other state or of the United States, including, but not limited to , any bid or 
contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political 
subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, 
bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation. 

 
2. I understand that “convicted” or “conviction” as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(b), Florida 

Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an 
adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by 
indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or 
entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere. 

 
3. I understand that an “affiliate” as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(a), Florida Statutes, 

means: 
 

a. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or 
 
 
 

Page 212



 

43 
 

b. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of 
the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime.  The term “affiliate” 
includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, 
members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate.  The 
ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in any person, or 
a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value 
under an arm’s length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls 
another person.  A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person 
who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 
months shall be considered an affiliate. 

 
4. I understand that a “person” as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(e), Florida Statutes, means 

any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with 
the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts 
for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or 
applies to transact business with a public entity.  The term “person” includes those officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active 
in management of an entity. 

 
5. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation 

to the entity submitting this sworn statement. [Indicate which statement applies.] 
 

_____  Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are 
active in the management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity has been charged 
with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. 
 
_____  The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are 
active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with 
and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. 
 
_____  The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are 
active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with 
and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent of July 1, 1989.  However, there has 
been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division 
of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer 
determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn 
statement on the convicted vendor list. [Attach a copy of the final order.] 

 
[Acknowledgment on following page.] 

 

Page 213



 

44 
 

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING 
OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY INDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS 
FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY, AND THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED.  I ALSO 
UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO 
ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT 
PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY 
CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                 Signature (Blue ink only) 
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 

 
On this the _______ day of ______________, 20 ______, before me, the undersigned 

Notary Public of the State of Florida, personally appeared (Name(s) of individual(s) who 

appeared before notary)______________________________________________ and whose 

name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument, and he/she/they acknowledge that he/she/they 

executed it. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal.    
 
      __________________________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Florida 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC: 
SEAL OF OFFICE:   
_______________________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public:  print, stamp or type as commissioned. 
 
 ____ Personally known to me, or 
  
 ____ Personal identification: 
  __________________________ 
  (Type of Identification Produced) 
 
 ____  Did take an oath, or 
 
 ____ Did Not take an oath

Page 214



 

45 
 

 

Page 215



12B

Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



 

1 
 

 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA 

 
 
 
 
 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

FOR 
 

CLEANING MAIN WET WELL AT  
1851 GALLEON STREET 

 
RFP NO. NBV  2017-004 

 

 
SEALED PROPOSALS WILL BE RECEIVED BY THE VILLAGE CLERK, 

1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, SUITE 300, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 
ON OR BEFORE APRIL 28, 2017, 4:00 P.M. 

North Bay Village, Florida 
 
 

Page 268



 

2 
 

Table of Contents 

Section 1 Request for Proposals Notice ……………………………………………..……….3 
 
Section 2 Introduction/Information ………………………………………………………......7 
 
Section 3 General Conditions …………………………….…………………………….…….8 
 
Section 4 Special Conditions ………………………………………………………………...13 
 
Section 5 Technical Specifications/Scope of Services ………………………………………19 
 
Section 6 Evaluation Procedures……………………………………………………………..21 
 
Section 7 Requirements of the Proposal ………………….…….……………………….…...23  
 
Section 8 Technical Proposal ………………………………………………………………...24 
 
Section 9 Cone of Silence ………………………….………………………………………...26 
 
Section 10 Qualification Forms ………………………….…………………………………..29  
 

Page 269



 

3 
 

SECTION 1 – REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NOTICE 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
CLEANING MAIN WET WELL AT  

1851 GALLEON STREET 
 

RFP NO. NBV 2017-004 
 

Public Notice is hereby given that North Bay Village, Florida is requesting proposals from 
experienced and qualified vendors to clean the Main Wet Well located at 1851 Galleon Street. 
 
Sealed Responses clearly labeled with the RFP title and number must be received by mail 
or hand delivered on or before April 28, 2017, no later than 4:00 p.m. local time, at which 
time they will be publicly opened.  Late submittals and facsimile submissions will not be 
considered.  The respondent shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission 
of the submittal documents. 
 
Respondents must submit an original unbound package, six (6) additional bound copies, and one 
(1) CD ROM to the Office of the Village Clerk, North Bay Village, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, 
Suite 300, North Bay Village, Florida  33141. 
 
Copies of this Proposal Document may be obtained at DemandStar by Onvia at 
www.demandstar.com., at the Village Administrative Offices, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 
300, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, or 
by emailing yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com. 
 
The Village reserves the right at any time to modify, waive or otherwise vary the terms and 
conditions of the bid including but not limited to deadlines for submission, submission 
requirements, informalities or irregularities in any submittal, and the Scope of Work. The Village 
further reserves the right to reject any or all submittals, to cancel or withdraw this RFP at any 
time or take any other such actions that may be deemed in the best interest of the Village, to 
award in whole or in part to one or more respondents, or take any other such actions that may be 
deemed in the best interest of the Village. 
 
Pursuant to Section 38.18 of the Village Code, “Ethics Ordinance”, a Cone of Silence is hereby 
imposed whereby any communications between any potential bidder, service provider, lobbyist 
or consultant and the Village’s staff and elected officials pertaining to this RFP are prohibited. 
 
Yvonne P. Hamilton, CMC  
Village Clerk 

Page 270

http://www.demandstar.com/
mailto:yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com


 

4 
 

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 
 
Below is the current schedule of the events that will take place in the procurement process. The 
Village reserves the right to make changes or alterations to the schedule as the Village 
determines is in the best interests of the public. Proposers will be notified sufficiently in 
advance of any changes or alterations in the schedule. Unless otherwise notified in writing by 
the Village, the dates indicated below for submission of items or for other actions on the part of 
a Proposer shall constitute absolute deadlines for those activities and failure to fully comply by 
the time stated shall cause a Proposer to be disqualified. 
 

Date Event 
April 2, 2017 Advertisement 

April 3, 2017 Documents Available for Public Inspection and digital copies 

April 17, 2017 10:00 AM, pre-bid meeting at: 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Commission Chambers 1st Floor, 
North Bay Village, Florida 33141. 

April 21, 2017 Last day opportunity for questions by emailing   
yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com, no later than 4:00 PM local time. 

April 28, 2017 Bid Documents Submittal due in to Village Clerk Office, no later 
than 4:00 P.M. local time. 

May 11, 2017 Technical Review Committee Meeting – 10:00 A.M. local time. 
May 22, 2017 Award Recommendation to Village Clerk and Village Manager 
June 13, 2017 Commission Public Meeting to review and confirm Award 

Recommendation 7:30 P.M. local time. 
 

Page 271

mailto:yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com


 

5 
 

 
BID/PROPOSAL SIGNATURE PAGE 

 
How to submit Proposal:  
 
It will be the sole responsibility of the Proposer to ensure that the Proposals reach North Bay 
Village, Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300, North Bay Village, Florida, 33141, 
prior to the RFP opening date and time listed. Proposals submitted by email or facsimile will 
NOT be accepted. 
 
The proposal package must contain a Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of the total amount bid for 
the 5. If alternates are offered the 5% Bid Bond shall be on the highest total bid amount. The 
security will be in the form of cash, cashier’s check, or bid bond made payable to North Bay 
Village and will be required to be submitted with the Proposal package in a separate marked 
envelope. All Bid Bonds will be returned after the contract with the successful proposer has been 
executed. 
 
The Village will require, as a condition of award the successful proposer to provide a Payment 
/Performance Bond in the amount of the contract for the entire project. This Bond will be in 
effect until after the Village has accepted the completed project and made the final payment. 
 
The below signed hereby agrees to furnish the following article(s) or services at the price(s) and 
terms stated subject to all instructions, conditions, specifications addenda, legal advertisement, 
and conditions contained in the bid. I have read all attachments including the specifications and 
fully understand what is required. By submitting this signed proposal, I will accept a contract, if 
approved by the Village and such acceptance covers all terms, conditions, and specifications of 
this bid/proposal. 
 
Submitted by:__________________________________________________________________                                                        
     (Signature)                                                       (Date) 
Name (printed)_________________________________  
Title:_________________________________________ 
Company: (Legal Registration)___________________________________________________ 
 
VENDOR, IF FOREIGN CORPORATION, SHALL BE REQUIRED TO OBTAIN A 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE, IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE §607.1501 (visit 
http://www.dos.state.fl.us/doc/). 
 
Address:______________________________________________________________________ 
City:_____________________________ State:______________________ Zip Code: ________ 
Telephone No._____________________ FAX No._________________________________ 
E-MAIL:_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Page 272



 

6 
 

 
 
VARIANCES: State any variations to specifications, terms and conditions in the space provided below or reference 
in the space provided below all variances contained on other pages of bid, attachments or bid pages. No variations or 
exceptions by the Proposer will be deemed to be part of the bid submitted unless such variation or exception is listed 
and contained within the bid documents and referenced in the space provided below. If no statement is contained in 
the below space, it is hereby implied that your bid/proposal complies with the full scope of this solicitation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 273



 

7 
 

 
SECTION 2 - INTRODUCTION/INFORMATION 

 
 

2.1.  Purpose 
 
North Bay Village is requesting proposals from qualified vendors/contractors to clean the main 
Wet Well located at 1851 Galleon Street, North Bay Village, Florida, as follows: 
 

 Remove approximately 2 feet of floating accumulated materials from the wet well. 
 Remove accumulated materials from around the wet well platform area. 
 Dispose of waste materials at appropriate permitted disposal site. 
 The work shall be performed in accordance with confined space safety procedures and 

OSHA requirements. 
 Provide to the village copies of all disposal tickets 

The bid price shall include all equipment, labor, materials and applicable fees for cleaning and 
proper disposal of waste materials. Bidders are encouraged to visit the site prior to submittal of 
bids. 
 
2.2.  Information or Clarification 
 
Material changes, if any, to the scope of services or bidding procedures will only be transmitted 
by written addendum. No variation in price or conditions shall be permitted based upon a claim 
of ignorance. Submission of a proposal will be considered evidence that the proposer has 
familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the work, and the equipment, materials, and 
labor required. 
 
2.3.  Eligibility: 
 
To be eligible to respond to this RFP, the proposing firm must demonstrate that they, or the 
principals assigned to the project, have successfully completed services, similar to those 
specified in the Technical Specifications/Scope of Services section of this RFP, to at least one 
agency similar in size and complexity of North Bay Village. The services need to be completed 
within the last five (5) years.  

Page 274



 

8 
 

SECTION 3 – GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
3.1. RFP Documents 

These RFP documents constitute the complete set of Proposal specifications and forms.  All 
forms and documents must be executed, sealed and submitted as provided in this RFP.  Proposals 
not submitted on the prescribed Proposal forms may be rejected.  By submitting a Proposal, the 
Proposer agrees to be subjected to all terms and conditions specified herein.  Submittal of a 
response to this RFP constitutes a binding offer by the Proposer. 
 
3.2. Taxes 

The Proposer shall not be entitled to the Village’s tax exempt benefits. 
 
3.3. Interpretations and Inquiries 

All Proposers shall carefully examine the RFP documents.  Any ambiguities or inconsistencies 
shall be brought to the attention of the Village or its agent in writing prior to the Proposal 
deadline. 
 
Any questions concerning the intent, meaning and interpretation of the RFP documents shall be 
requested in writing, via email or fax, and received by the Village no later than 3:00 PM, local 
time, on April 21, 2017.  Written inquiries shall be sent with the subject line “Cleaning Main 
Wet Well at 1851 Galleon Street, RFP No. NBV 2017-004: 
 
Yvonne P. Hamilton, CMC, Village Clerk 
North Bay Village 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 
North Bay Village, Florida 33141 
Fax: (305) 756-7722 
Email: yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com 
 
The Village will not respond to oral inquiries. 
 
Submission of a Proposal shall serve as prima facie evidence that the Proposer has examined the 
Contract and is fully aware of all conditions affecting the provision of Services 
 
No person is authorized to give oral interpretations of, or make oral changes to, the RFP 
documents.  Therefore, oral statements shall not be binding and should not be relied upon.  Any 
interpretation of, or changes to, the RFP documents shall be made in the form of a written 
addendum to the RFP document and shall be furnished by the Village to all Proposers.  Only 
those interpretations of, or changes to, the RFP document that are made in writing and furnished 
to the Proposers by the Village may be relied upon. 
 

Page 275

mailto:tejedam@miamilakes-fl.gov


 

9 
 

3.4. Verbal Agreements 

No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of the Village, either 
before or after submittal of the Proposal, shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations 
contained in the RFP.  Any such verbal agreement or conversation shall be considered as 
unofficial information and in no way binding upon the Village or the Proposer. 
 
3.5. No Contingent Fees 

Proposer warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for the Proposer, to solicit or secure this Contract, and that it has 
not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for the Proposer, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. 
 
3.6. Independence 

On the form provided in Section 10 of this RFP, the Proposer shall list, and describe any 
relationships – professional, financial or otherwise – that it may have with the Village, its elected 
or appointed officials, its employees or agents or any of its agencies or component units for the 
past five (5) years, together with a statement explaining why such relationships do not constitute 
a conflict of interest relative to performing the Services sought in this RFP.  Additionally, the 
Proposer shall give the Village written notice of any other relationships – professional, financial 
or otherwise – that it enters into with the Village, its elected or appointed officials, its employees 
or agents or any of its agencies or component units during the period of the Contract. 
 
3.7. No Collusion 

More than one Proposal from an individual, firm, partnership, corporation or association under 
the same or different names will not be considered.  Reasonable grounds for believing that a 
Proposer is involved in more than one Proposal for the same work will be cause for rejection of 
all Proposals in which such Proposers are believed to be involved. 
 
3.8. Assignment; Non-transferability of Proposal 

Proposals shall not be assigned or transferred.  A Proposer who is, or may be, purchased by or 
merged with any other corporate entity during any stage of the Proposal process, through to and 
including awarding of and execution of a Contract, is subject to having its Proposal disqualified 
as a result of such transaction.  The Village Manager shall determine whether a Proposal is to be 
disqualified in such instances. 
 
If, at any time during the Proposal process, filings, notices or like documents are submitted to any 
regulatory agency concerning the potential acquisition of Proposer, or the sale of a controlling 
interest in the Proposer, or any similar transaction, Proposer shall immediately disclose such 
information to the Village.  Failure to do so may result in the Proposal being disqualified, at the 
Village Manager’s sole discretion. 
 

Page 276



 

10 
 

3.9. Legal Requirements 

Proposers are required to comply with all provisions of federal, state, county and local laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations that are applicable to the Services being offered in this RFP.  
Lack of knowledge of the Proposer shall in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility, or 
constitute a cognizable defense against the legal effects thereof. 
 
3.10. Familiarity with Laws and Ordinances 

The submission of a Proposal on the Services requested herein shall be considered as a 
representation that the Proposer is familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules 
and regulations which affect those engaged or employed in the provision of such Services, or 
equipment used in the provision of such Services, or which in any way affects the conduct of the 
provision of such Services; and no plea of misunderstanding will be considered on account of 
ignorance thereof.  If the Proposer discovers any provisions in the RFP documents that are 
contrary to or inconsistent with any law, ordinance, or regulation, he or she shall report it to the 
Village Clerk in writing. 
 
3.11. Advertising 

In submitting a Proposal, Proposer agrees not to use the results therefrom as a part of any 
Advertising or Proposer sponsored publicity without the express written approval of the Village 
Manager or designee. 
 
3.12. Award of Contract 

Award shall be made to the responsible Proposer whose proposal is determined in writing to be 
the most advantageous to the Village, taking into consideration price and the evaluation factors 
set forth in the request for proposals. No other factors or criteria shall be used in the evaluation. 
 
3.13. Execute Contract 

The terms, conditions and provisions in this RFP shall be included and incorporated in the final 
Contract between the Village and the successful Proposer(s).  Following ranking of the most 
qualified Proposers and selection by the Village Commission, the successful Proposer(s) shall, 
within ten (10) days of receipt of a written notice of the Award of the Contract, deliver to the 
Village a fully executed Contract, The required payment/Performance Bond and all requested 
certificates of insurance.  
 
The final Contract shall be subject to the approval of the Village Manager in his or her sole 
discretion, and approved as to form and legality by the Village Attorney. The order of precedence 
will be the Contract, the RFP Documents, the Proposer’s response and general law.  Any and all 
legal action necessary to interpret or enforce the Contract will be governed by the laws of 
Florida.  Venue shall be proper exclusively in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 
 

Page 277



 

11 
 

3.14. Facilities 

The Village Manager or designee reserves the right to inspect each Proposer’s facilities at any 
reasonable time, during normal working hours, without prior notice to determine that the 
Proposer has a bona fide place of business, and is a responsible Proposer. 
 
3.15. Withdrawal or Revision of Proposal Prior to and After Opening 

A Proposer may withdraw its Proposal at any time before the proposals are opened. No Proposer 
may withdraw its Proposal within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days after the Proposal 
opening date. 
 
3.16. Village’s Exclusive Rights 

The Village Manager reserves the exclusive rights to: 
 

1. Waive any deficiency or irregularity in the selection process; 

2. Accept or reject any or all Proposals in part or in whole; 

3. Request additional information as appropriate; or 

4. Reject any or all submittals if found to be in the best interest of the Village. 

By submitting a Proposal for the Services, all Proposers acknowledge and agree that no 
enforceable Contract arises until the Village Commission approves a Contract with the selected 
Proposer.  
 
3.17. Addenda 

The Village reserves the right to issue addenda.  Each Proposer shall acknowledge receipt of such 
addenda on the form provided herein.  In the event any Proposer fails to acknowledge receipt of 
such addenda, his/her Proposal shall nevertheless be construed as though the addenda had been 
received and acknowledged, and the submission of his/her Proposal shall constitute 
acknowledgment of receipt of all addenda, whether or not received by him/her.  It is the 
responsibility of each prospective Proposer to verify that he/she has received all addenda issued 
before depositing the Proposal with the Village. 
 
3.18. Review of the RFP Documents 

By the submission of a Proposal to perform the Services, the Proposer certifies that a careful 
review of the RFP documents has taken place and that the Proposer is fully informed and 
understands the requirements of the RFP documents and the quality and quantity of service to be 
performed. 
 

Page 278



 

12 
 

3.19. Adjustment/Changes/Deviations 

No adjustments, changes or deviations to the RFP will be accepted unless the conditions or 
specifications of the RFP expressly so provide. 
 
3.20. Public Records 

Upon award recommendation or thirty (30) days after Proposal opening, whichever is earlier, any 
material submitted in response to this RFP will become a “public record” and shall be subject to 
public disclosure consistent with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Record Law).  Proposers 
must claim the applicable exemptions to disclosure provided by law in their response to the RFP 
by identifying materials to be protected, and must state the reasons why such exclusion from 
public disclosure is necessary and legal.  The Village reserves the right to make all final 
determination(s) of the applicability of the Florida Public Records Law. 
 
3.21. Subcontracting 

No subcontracting shall be permitted, except with the prior approval of the Village Manager, 
which shall be at his or her sole and absolute discretion.  A list of all such subcontractors shall be 
included in the Proposal.  If additional subcontractors are to be used during the term of the 
Contract, other than those submitted in the Proposal, a list of such subcontractors shall be 
provided to the Village Manager, subject to his or her approval. 
 
3.22. Public Entities Crime 

A person or affiliate as defined in Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, who or which has been 
placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the Florida Department of Management 
Services following a conviction for a public entity crime, may not submit a Proposal on an 
Contract to provide any goods or services to the Village and may not transact business with the 
Village in an amount set forth in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a 
period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 
By submitting a response to this RFP, Proposer certifies that it is qualified under Section 
287.133, Florida Statutes, to provide the Services set forth in this RFP. 
 
3.23. Non-Collusion Affidavit 

The Proposer shall include the Non-Collusion Affidavit as set forth in the form provided in this 
RFP and as described in this RFP.  Proposer’s failure to include the affidavit may result in 
disqualification. 

Page 279



 

13 
 

SECTION 4 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
 

 
4.1. General Conditions 
 
RFP General Conditions are included and made a part of this RFP. 
 
4.2. Variances 
 
While the Village allows Contractors to take variances to the RFP terms, conditions, and 
specifications, the number and extent of variances taken will be considered in determining 
proposal responsiveness and in allocating proposal evaluation points.  
 
4.3. RFP Documents 
 
The Contractor shall examine this RFP carefully. Ignorance of the requirements will not relieve 
the Contractor from liability and obligations under the Contract. 
 
4.4. Proposers’ Costs 
 
The Village shall not be liable for any costs incurred by proposers in responding to this RFP. 
 
4.5. Proposal Security 
 
The proposal package must contain a Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of the total amount bid for 
the project. If alternates are offered, the 5% Bid Bond shall be on the highest total bid amount. 
The security will be in the form of cash, cashier’s check, or bid bond made payable to North Bay 
Village and will be required to be submitted with the Proposal package in a separate marked 
envelope. All Bid Bonds will be returned after the contract with the successful proposer has 
executed a contract for the work. 
 
The Village will require, as a condition of award the successful proposer to provide a Payment 
/Performance Bond in the amount of the contract for the entire project. This Bond will be in 
effect until after the Village has accepted the completed project and made the final payment. 
Should the Proposer refuse to continue with the development of its Proposal, refuse to enter into 
the Contract contained in this RFP, or fail to furnish such bond or check, the amount of the 
Proposal security shall be forfeited to the Village as liquidated damages, not as a penalty.  
Proposals not accompanied by the proper Proposal security shall be deemed non-responsive and 
will not be considered.   
 
Default of Proposer shall occur upon the failure of the Proposer to deliver within the time 
required by the RFP, including the executed Agreement, and any performance and payment 
bonds required by the RFP and the Agreement.  Bid Bond for the awarded Proposer will be 
returned following the execution of the Contract. 
 

Page 280



 

14 
 

4.6. Approved Equal Or Alternate Product Proposals 
 
The Technical Specifications contained in this RFP are to be used as a reference only and are not 
to be considered of a proprietary nature. These specifications represent a level of quality and 
features which are desired by North Bay Village.  
 
The proposer must state clearly in his proposal pages any variance to the specifications. If 
proposing an approved equal or alternate product, it will be the proposer's responsibility to 
provide adequate information in his proposal to enable the Village to ensure that the proposal 
meets the required criteria. If adequate information is not submitted with the proposal, it may be 
rejected. 
 
The Village will be the sole judge in determining if the product proposed qualifies as approved 
equal. The Village reserves the right to award to that proposal which will best serve the interest 
of the Village as determined by the Village. The Village further reserves the right to waive minor 
variations to specifications and in the bidding process. 
 
4.7. Contract Period & Warranty 
 
The resulting contract will be effective upon execution. The contract for the services should 
include initial warranty of all provided services and products and a minimum of a five (5) year 
warranty.  
 
4.8. Invoices/Payment 
 
Payments will be made based upon work completed.  Payment shall be made by the 15th of the 
month following receipt of the Contractor’s invoice for the services. 
  
4.9. Deletion Or Modification Of Services 
 
The Village reserves the right to delete any portion of this Contract at any time without cause, 
and if such right is exercised by the Village, the total fee shall be reduced in the same ratio as the 
estimated cost of the work deleted bears to the estimated cost of the work originally planned. If 
work has already been accomplished on the portion of the Contract to be deleted, the Contractor 
shall be paid for the deleted portion on the basis of the estimated percentage of completion of 
such portion. 
 
If the Contractor and the Village agree on modifications or revisions to the task elements, after 
the Village has approved work to begin on a particular task or project, and a budget has been 
established for that task or project, the Contractor will submit a revised budget to the Village for 
approval prior to proceeding with the work. 
 

Page 281



 

15 
 

4.10. Additional Items 
 
The Village may require additional items of a similar nature, but not specifically listed in the 
contract. The Contractor agrees to provide such items, and shall provide the Village prices on 
such additional items based upon a formula or method which is the same or similar to that used 
in establishing the prices in his proposal. If the price(s) offered are not acceptable to the Village, 
and the situation cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of the Village, the Village reserves the 
right to procure those items from other vendors or to cancel the contract upon giving the 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice. 
 
4.11. Independent Contractor 
 
The Contractor is an independent contractor under this Contract.  Personal services provided by 
the Contractor shall be by employees of the Contractor and subject to supervision by the 
Contractor, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the Village. Personnel policies, tax 
responsibilities, social security, health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies and 
other similar administrative procedures applicable to services rendered under this Contract shall 
be those of the Contractor. 
 
4.12. Uncontrollable Circumstances ("Force Majeure") 
 
The Village and Contractor will be excused from the performance of their respective obligations 
under this contract when and to the extent that their performance is delayed or prevented by any 
circumstances beyond their control including, fire, flood, explosion, strikes or other labor 
disputes, act of God or public emergency, war, riot, civil commotion, malicious damage, act or 
omission of any governmental authority, delay or failure or shortage of any type of transportation, 
equipment, or service from a public utility needed for their performance, provided that: 
 
a. the non performing party gives the other party prompt written notice describing the 

particulars of the Force Majeure including, but not limited to, the nature of the occurrence 
and its expected duration, and continues to furnish timely reports with respect thereto during 
the period of the Force Majeure; 

b. the excuse of performance is of no greater scope and of no longer duration than is required by 
the Force Majeure; 

c. no obligations of either party that arose before the Force Majeure causing the excuse of 
performance are excused as a result of the Force Majeure; and 

d. the non performing party uses its best efforts to remedy its inability to perform. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, performance shall not be excused under this Section for a period in 
excess of two (2) months, provided that in extenuating circumstances, the Village may excuse 
performance for a longer term. Economic hardship of the Contractor will not constitute Force 
Majeure. The term of the contract shall be extended by a period equal to that during which either 
party's performance is suspended under this Section. 
 

Page 282



 

16 
 

4.13. Insurance  
 
The contractor shall furnish proof of Worker’s Compensation Insurance, General Liability 
Insurance and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. The coverage is to remain in 
force at all times during the contract period. The following minimum insurance coverage is 
required. The policy(ies) must include Employer’s Liability with minimum limits of 
$1,000,000.00 for each accident.  The Village is to be added as an “additional insured” with 
relation to General Liability and Automobile Insurance. Any costs for adding the Village as 
“additional insured” will be at the contractor’s expense. 
 
a. Workers Compensation: Notwithstanding FS 440.055, any firm performing work on behalf of 

North Bay Village must provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for the benefit of its 
employees.  

 
Exceptions and exemptions can only be made if they are in accordance with Florida Statute.  
 
b. Comprehensive General Liability with minimum limits of one million dollars 

($1,000,000.00) each occurrence; two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) general aggregate 
limit. Such certificate shall list the Village as an additional insured. 

 
NOTE: If Comprehensive General Liability limits are less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000.00), the sum of Comprehensive General Liability limits and Excess Liability 
limits must equal no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00). 

 
c. Automobile Liability must equal no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) for each 

occurrence. The Contractor shall provide to the Village original certificates of such coverage 
prior to engaging in any activities under this contract. Certificates shall have no less than 
thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation. No work can be started until the certificate is 
submitted and approved by the Village Manager. 

 
In the event that you are the successful proposer, you will be required to provide a certificate 
naming the Village as an “additional insured” for both General Liability and Automobile 
coverages. 
 
Certificate holder should be stated as follows: 
North Bay Village 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300                               
North Bay Village Florida 33141 
 
4.15. Bonds 
 
The successful bidder shall provide with the executed contract or within five (5) days of the 
Effective Date of Contract, a cash bond, letter of credit or Payment/Performance bond in an 
amount equal to the total of the contract amount in a form satisfactory to the Village Attorney.  
 
 

Page 283



 

17 
 

The surety providing such Bonds must be licensed authorized and admitted to do business in the 
State of Florida and must be listed in the Federal Register (Dept. of Treasury, Circular 570).   
 
The cost of the premiums for such Bonds shall be at no cost to the VILLAGE.  If notice of any 
change affecting the work under the Contract, the Contract Prices or Term or any of the 
provisions of the RFP Documents is required by the provisions of any Bond to be given to a 
surety, the giving of any such notice shall be CONTRACTOR’S sole responsibility. 
 
4.16. Lobbying Activities 
 
ALL BIDDERS/PROPOSERS PLEASE NOTE: Any bidder or proposer submitting a response to 
this solicitation must comply, if applicable, with North Bay Village Ordinances, Lobbying 
Activities. Copies of Ordinances may be obtained from the Village Clerk’s Office. The ordinance 
may also be viewed on the Village's website or at www.municode.com.  
 
4.17. Contract Administrator 
 
The Village may designate a Contract Administrator whose principal duties shall be Liaison with 
Contractor to coordinate and approve all work under the contract. 
 
Resolve any disputes. Assure consistency and quality of Contractor's performance. 
 
Schedule and conduct Contractor performance evaluations and document findings. 
 
Review and approve for payment all invoices for work performed or items delivered. 
 
4.18. Contractor Performance Reviews And Ratings 
 
The Village Contract Administrator may develop a Contractor performance evaluation report at 
the discretion of the Village Manager. This report shall be used to periodically review and rate 
the Contractor's performance under the contract with performance rating as follows: 
 

 Excellent - far exceeds requirements. 
 Good - Exceeds requirements 
 Fair - Just meets requirements. 
 Poor - does not meet all requirements and Contractor is subject to penalty provisions 

under the contact.  
 Noncompliance – does not comply with requirements or continued poor performance 

after notice or a performance level that does not meet a significant portion of the 
requirements.  This rating makes the Contractor subject to the default or cancellation for 
cause provisions of the contract.  

 
The report shall also list all discrepancies found during the review period. The Contractor shall 
be provided with a copy of the report, and may respond in writing if he takes exception to the 
report or wishes to comment on the report. Contractor performance reviews and subsequent 
reports will be used in determining the suitability of contract extension. 

Page 284



 

18 
 

4.19. Bid Tabulations/Intent To Award 
 
Notice of Intent to Award Contract/Bid, resulting from the Village’s Formal solicitation process, 
requiring Village Commission action is available at Village Hall. Tabulations of receipt of those 
parties responding to a formal solicitation may be found at Village Hall or any interested party 
may call the Village Clerk at (305) 756-7171. 
 

Page 285



 

19 
 

SECTION 5 – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS/SCOPE OF SERVICE 
 
 
5.1      Purpose 
 
North Bay Village is requesting proposals from qualified vendors/contractors to clean the main 
Wet Well located at 1851 Galleon Street, North Bay Village, Florida, as follows: 
 

 Remove approximately 2 feet of floating accumulated materials from the wet well. 
 Remove accumulated materials from around the wet well platform area. 
 Dispose of waste materials at appropriate permitted disposal site. 
 The work shall be performed in accordance with confined space safety procedures and 

OSHA requirements. 
 Provide to the village copies of all disposal tickets 

The bid price shall include all equipment, labor, materials and applicable fees for cleaning and 
proper disposal of waste materials. Bidders are encouraged to visit the site prior to submittal of 
bids. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 286



 

20 
 

5.2  Scope of Services 
 

CLEANING MAIN WET WELL AT  
1851 GALLEON STREET 

 
North Bay Village is requesting proposals from qualified vendors/contractors to clean the main 
Wet Well located at 1851 Galleon Street, North Bay Village, Florida, as follows: 
 

 Remove approximately 2 feet of floating accumulated materials from the wet well. 
 Remove accumulated materials from around the wet well platform area. 
 Dispose of waste materials at appropriate permitted disposal site. 
 The work shall be performed in accordance with confined space safety procedures and 

OSHA requirements. 
 Provide to the village copies of all disposal tickets 

The bid price shall include all equipment, labor, materials and applicable fees for cleaning and 
proper disposal of waste materials. Bidders are encouraged to visit the site prior to submittal of 
bids. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 287



 

21 
 

 
SECTION 6- EVALUATION PROCEDURES 

 
 
6.1 Selection Committee 
 
Proposals submitted will be evaluated by a Selection Committee. 
 
The following criteria will be used to evaluable proposal responses and to make a 
recommendation to the Village Commission. 
 
1. Mandatory elements 
 
 a) The vendor contractor is independent and licensed to practice in the State of Florida. 
 

b) The vendor/contractor has no conflict of interest with regard to any other work 
performed by the vendor/contractor for North Bay Village. 

 
 d) The vendor/contractor has a record of quality work. 
  

e) The vendor/contractor adheres to the instructions in this RFP for preparation and 
submission of the proposal. 

 
2. Pre-Requisite Qualifications 
 

Proposers submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP must, at a minimum, meet the 
following Pre-Requisite Qualifications.  All requested documentation and/or information 
must be provided in the Proposal to confirm that the Firm has satisfied all of the Pre-
Requisite Qualifications.  Vendor/Contractors that do not meet the following 
qualifications shall be deemed non-responsive. 

 
Vendor/contractor shall be in good standing with all regulatory departments of the State 
of Florida. 

 
Vendor/contractor shall have at least one operating office located within Florida  

 
3. Evaluation Criteria: 
 

a) Expertise and Experience (Maximum Points - 40) 
(i.e. the firm's past experience and performance on similar projects of comparable size 
and complexity.) 

 
b) Responses of references (Maximum Points - 20) 

 
c)   Cost (Maximum Points – 40)  

 

Page 288



 

22 
 

Evaluation of proposals will be conducted by an evaluation committee of qualified Village Staff, 
or other persons selected by the Village Manager. It may be a two-step process. In step one the 
committee will evaluate all responsive proposals based upon the information and references 
contained in the proposals as submitted. The committee will score and rank all responsive 
proposals and determine a number one proposer. In the event the committee cannot identify a 
number one proposer, it may give further consideration to all responsive proposals received.  
Proposers may be required to provide an oral presentation by appearing before the Evaluation 
Committee or by conference telephone call for clarification purposes only, with the finalists and 
re-score and re-rank the finalists proposals. Information and references submitted will be 
considered in the award.  The committee will then make a recommendation to the Village 
Manager for final recommendation to the Village Commission for award. 
 
The Village may require additional information and Proposers agree to furnish such information. 
 
The Village reserves the right to award the contract to that Proposer who will best serve the 
interest of the Village. The Village reserves the right, based upon its deliberations and in its 
opinion, to accept or reject any or all proposals. The Village also reserves the right to waive 
minor irregularities or variations to the specifications and in the bidding process. 

Page 289



 

23 
 

SECTION 7 - REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

All proposals must be submitted as specified on the proposal pages which follow. Any 
attachments must be clearly identified. To be considered, the proposal must respond to all parts 
of the RFP. Any other information thought to be relevant, but not applicable to the enumerated 
categories, should be provided as an appendix to the proposal. If publications are supplied by a 
proposer to respond to a requirement, the response should include reference to the document 
number and page number. This format will provide a quick reference for the evaluators. 
Proposals not providing this reference will be considered to have no reference material included 
in the additional documents. 
 
Proposals must be submitted in a sealed package with the RFP number, due and open dates, and 
RFP title (NBV RFP 2017-004) clearly marked on the outside. If more than one package is 
submitted, they should be marked 1 of 2, etc. 
 
Proposals will be received by mail or hand-delivered to the Village Clerk’s Office, 1666 
Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300, North Bay Village, FL, 33141 on or prior to April 3, 2017 no 
later than 3:00 pm. The proposal shall be signed by a representative who is authorized to 
contractually bind the Contractor. 
 
PROPOSERS MUST SUBMIT AN IDENTIFIED UNBOUND ORIGINAL DOCUMENT PLUS 
SIX (6) BOUND COPIES AND ONE (1) CD ROM OF THE PROPOSAL PAGES INCLUDING 
ANY ATTACHMENTS.THE ABOVE REQUIREMENT TOTALS EIGHT (8) COPIES OF 
YOUR PROPOSAL. 
 

Page 290



 

24 
 

SECTION 8 – TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 
 
 
The following issues should be fully responded to in your proposal in concise narrative form. 
Each issue should be referenced and be presented in the following order:  
 
Tab 1: Proposal Signature Page  
 
Tab 2: Ability to Meet the Project Schedule 
Include a proposed schedule that shows how the Contractor would provide services within the 
time frame required. 
 
Tab 3: State number of years’ experience the proposer has had in providing similar services. If 
services provided differs from the one presented in your proposal, please delineate such 
differences. If your company has not provided similar services in the past, explain fully why you 
consider your company qualified to perform this service for North Bay Village. 
 
Tab 4: Proposer to provide a minimum of three (3) references for which similar services have 
been used in this area. If additional space is required, include as an appendix to RFP 2017-004 
response. If additional references are provided, please attach this information as an appendix to 
your RFP response.  
 
Description of services rendered:  
During the month(s)/year(s):  
Name of Governmental Agency (Village or county): 
Principal Contact Person: 
Telephone Number: 
Fax Number: 
Email Address: 
 
If you have ever failed to complete work awarded to you, explain where and why. 
 
Tab 5: List any North Bay Village or other governmental agency with which the proposer has had 
contracts or agreements during the past three (3) years. 
 
Tab 6: Provide a summary of any litigation filed against Proposer, principals, or individuals 
employed by the Proposal in the past three (3) years which is related to the services the Proposer 
provides in the regular course of business. The summary shall state the nature of the litigation, a 
brief description of the case, the outcome or projected outcome, and the monetary amounts 
involved. 
 
Tab 7: Proposer please quote your company’s rates for providing additional services 
 
 
 
 

Page 291



 

25 
 

 
Tab 8: Attach copies of all Insurance Certificates for our review. 
 
Tab 9: Any additional information. The proposer understands that the information contained in 
these Proposal Pages is to be relied upon by the Village in awarding the proposed Contract, and 
such information is warranted by the proposer to be true. The proposer agrees to furnish such 
additional information, prior to acceptance of any proposal, relating to the qualifications of the 
proposer, as may be required by the Village. 
 
COMPLETE AND RETURN THE REQUIRED NUMBER OF PROPOSAL PAGES AND 
ATTACHMENTS. 
 

Page 292



 

26 
 

SECTION 9 – CONE OF SILENCE 
 

 
9.1 Cone of Silence 
 
You are hereby advised that this Request for Proposal No. NBV RFP 2017-004 is subject to the 
“Cone of Silence” in accordance with Section 38.18 of the North Bay Village Code of 
Ordinances. A proposer who violates these provisions shall not be considered for this Request for 
Proposal in addition to any other applicable penalties. 

§ 38.18 - Cone of Silence.  

(A) Contracts for the provision of goods and services. 

(1) "Cone of Silence" is hereby defined to mean a prohibition on: 

a.  any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ, or bid between a 
potential vendor, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and the 
Village's professional staff including, but not limited to, the Village Manager 
and his or her staff;  

b. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ, or bid between the 
Mayor or Village Commissioners and any member of the Village's 
professional staff including, but not limited to, the Village Manager and his or 
her staff;  

c. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between a 
potential vendor, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and any 
member of the selection committee therefor;  

d. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between the 
Mayor, Village Commissioners and any member of the selection committee;  

e. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between a 
potential vendor, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and the 
Mayor or Village Commissioners; and  

f. any communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between any 
member of the Village's professional staff and any member of the selection 
committee.  

The Village Manager and the Chairperson of the selection committee may 
communicate about a particular selection committee recommendation, but 
only after the committee has submitted an award recommendation to the 
Village Manager and provided that should any change occur in the committee 
recommendation, the content of the communication and of the corresponding 
change shall be described in writing and filed by the Village Manager with the 
Village Clerk and be included in any recommendation memorandum 
submitted by the Village Manager to the Village Commission.  

Page 293



 

27 
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Cone of Silence shall not apply to:  

a. communications with the Village Attorney and his or her staff; 

b. duly noticed site visits to determine the competency of bidders 
regarding a particular bid during the time period between the opening of 
bids and the time the Village Manager makes his or her written 
recommendation;  

c. any emergency procurement of goods or services; 

d. communication regarding a particular RFP, RFQ or bid between any 
person and the contracting officer responsible for administering the 
procurement process for the RFP, RFQ or bid, provided the 
communication is limited strictly to matters of process or procedure 
already contained in the corresponding solicitation document.  

(2) Procedure. 

a. A Cone of Silence shall be imposed upon each RFP, RFQ and bid after the 
advertisement of the RFP, RFQ or bid. At the time of imposition of the Cone 
of Silence, the Village Manager or his or her designee shall provide for public 
notice of the Cone of Silence. The Village Manager shall issue a written 
notice to the affected departments, file a copy of the notice with the Village 
Clerk, with a copy to the Mayor and each Village Commissioner, and shall 
include in any public solicitation for goods and services a statement disclosing 
the requirements of this ordinance. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this section, the imposition of a Cone of Silence on a particular RFP, RFQ or 
bid shall not preclude staff from obtaining industry comment or performing 
market research, provided all communications related thereto between a 
potential vendor, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and any 
member of the Village's professional staff including, but not limited to, the 
Village Manager and his or her staff, are in writing or are made at a duly 
noticed public meeting.  

 

b. The Cone of Silence shall terminate at the time the Village Manager makes 
his or her written recommendation to the Village Commission; provided, 
however, that if the Village Commission refers the Village Manager's 
recommendation back to the Village Manager or staff for further review, the 
Cone of Silence shall be re-imposed until the time as the Village Manager 
makes a subsequent written recommendation.  

 

 

 

Page 294



 

28 
 

(3) Exceptions. The provisions of this ordinance shall not apply to oral 
communications at pre-bid conferences, oral presentations before selection 
committees, contract negotiations during any duly noticed public meeting, public 
presentations made to the Village Commission during any duly noticed public 
meeting or communications in writing at any time with any Village employee, 
official or member of the Village Commission unless specifically prohibited by the 
applicable RFP, RFQ or bid documents.  

The bidder or proposer shall file a copy of any written communication with the 
Village Clerk. The Village Clerk shall make copies available to any person upon 
request.  

(B) Penalties. In addition to the penalties provided in this chapter and Miami-Dade 
County Code Section 2-11.1 (s) and (v), violation of this section by a particular bidder or 
proposer shall render any RFP award, RFQ award or bid award to the bidder or proposer 
voidable. Any person who violates a provision of this ordinance shall be prohibited from 
serving on a Village competitive selection committee. In addition to any other penalty 
provided by law, violation of any provision of this ordinance by a Village employee shall 
subject the employee to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. Additionally, 
any person who has personal knowledge of a violation of this ordinance shall report the 
violation to the State Attorney and, or, may file a complaint with the Ethics 
Commission.  

 

Page 295



 

29 
 

SECTION 10 – QUALIFICATION FORMS 
 

 
The forms located in this section of the RFP shall be included in the Sealed Proposal.  Forms not 
completed in full may result in disqualification. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(This space intentionally left blank) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 296



 

30 
 

FORM 1 
PROPOSAL PRICING SHEET 

 
 
Provide a proposal containing a total price to perform the project and services as described in this 
request for proposals.  The total all-inclusive maximum price bid is to contain all direct and 
indirect costs including all out-of-pocket expenses.  The selected vendor agrees not to exceed this 
amount.  
 

CLEANING MAIN WET WELL AT  
1851 GALLEON STREET 

 
The price below represents the full cost to North Bay Village for cleaning the Main Wet Well at 
1851 Galleon Street detailed in the NBV RFP 2017-004. Any additional price quotes shall be 
submitted on a separate page and marked as an alternate quote for additional services or 
products. 
 
TOTAL COST $ 
 
Taxpayer Identification Number:  
_______________________________________________________ 
 
BIDDER: 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

   (Company Name) 
 

________________________________________________ 
         (Signature of Authorized Representative) 
 
________________________________________________ 
       (Printed Name and Title) 
 

Page 297



 

31 
 

FORM 2 
PROPOSER’S STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION 

 
 

1. Full Name of Business Concern (Proposer): 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Principal Business Address: 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
2. Principal Contact Person(s): 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
3. Form of Business Concern (Corporation, Partnership, Joint Venture, Other): 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Provide names of partners or officers as appropriate and indicate if the individual has the 

authority to sign in name of Proposer.  Provide proof of the ability of the individuals so 
named to legally bind the Proposer. 

 
Name    Address     Title 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
If a corporation, in what state incorporated:         
Date Incorporated:            

                                     Month                                        Day                                        Year 
If a Joint Venture or Partnership, date of agreement: _______________________________ 

 
5. List all firms participating in this project (including subcontractors, etc.): 
 

Name    Address     Title 
1.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
2.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Page 298



 

32 
 

 
6. Outline specific areas of responsibility for each firm listed in Question 5.  
 

1.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
2.  
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
7. Licenses: 
 

a. County or Municipal Occupational License No. 
________________________________________ 
                        (Attach Copy) 

 
b. Business Tax Receipt Classification: 

________________________________________ 
                        

c. Business Tax Receipt Expiration Date: 
________________________________________ 
                         

d. Federal I.D. No: 
________________________________________ 
 

Page 299



 

33 
 

FORM 3 
PERSONNEL 

The Village requires that the proposer include the resumes of the principle of the 
company and any manager or superintendent that will be providing services under the 
specification of NBV 2017-004. Resumes should be provided in the following format, 
however, additional information may be provided at the option of the Proposer. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A. Name & Title 

 
B. Years of Experience with this company:  

With Other Similar companies: 
 

C. Education: 
 

Degree(s) 
 
Year/Specialization 

 
D. Professional References:  (List a minimum of 3) 

 
E. Other Relevant Experience and Qualifications 

 
F. Attach applicable licenses for each individual performing services pursuant to this 

Contract. 

Page 300



 

34 
 

FORM 4 
REFERENCES 

 
The Proposer shall provide a minimum of three (3) references of public and or private agencies 
presently being served by the Proposer with similar services to those being proposed in this 
Proposal. 
 
1. Name of  Agency:___________________________________________________ 
 Address:________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Phone Number:           
 Principal Contact Person(s):         
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Year Contract Initiated:  ______________ 
2. Name of  Agency:         
 Address:           
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Phone Number:           
 Principal Contact Person(s):         
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Year Contract Initiated:  ______________ 
3. Name of Agency:         
 Address:           
 _______________________________________________________________________  
 Phone Number:           
 Principal Contact Person(s):         
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 Year Contract Initiated:  ______________ 
 

Page 301



 

35 
 

FORM 5 
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 

 
 The undersigned vendor/contractor (company) in accordance with Chapter 287.087, 
Florida Statutes, hereby certifies that _______________________________________ does: 
                                                            (Name of Company) 
1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacturing, distribution, 

dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace 
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such 
prohibition. 

 
2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business’s policy 

of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and 
employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for 
drug abuse violations. 

 
3. Give each employee engaged in providing the contractual services that are under 

consideration a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 
 

4. In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employee that, as a condition of 
working on the contractual services that are under consideration, the employee will abide 
by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of 
guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of Chapter 893 or of any controlled substance 
law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later 
than five (5) days after such conviction. 

 
5. Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance 

or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee’s community, by any 
employee who is so convicted. 

 
6. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 

implementation of this section. 

Page 302



 

36 
 

 
7. As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with 

the above requirements. 
 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature (Blue ink only) 
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name 
_____________________________________________ 
Title 
_____________________________________________ 
Date 
 
Witness my hand and official notary seal/stamp at ____________________________ the day 
and year written above 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 
 
BEFORE ME, an officer duly authorized by law to administer oaths and take 
acknowledgments, personally appeared _____________________________________ as 
______________________________________, of _________________________________, 
an organization authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and acknowledged 
executing the foregoing Form as the proper official of _______________________ for the 
use and purposes mentioned in the Form and affixed the official seal of the corporation, and 
that the instrument is the act and deed of that corporation.  He/She is personally known to me 
or has produced __________________________________ as identification. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, I have set my hand and official seal at in the State and 
County aforesaid on this ______ day of ________________________, 201__. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: 

Page 303



 

37 
 

FORM 6 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDA 

 
The Proposer hereby acknowledges the receipt of the following addenda issued by the Village 
and incorporated into and made part of this RFP.  In the event the Proposer fails to include 
any such addenda in the table below, submission of this form shall constitute 
acknowledgment of receipt of all addenda, whether or not received by him/her. 
 

 
ADDENDUM 
   NUMBER 

    
    DATE 
RECEIVED 

        
        PRINT NAME 

    
   TITLE 

         
      SIGNATURE 
(BLUE INK ONLY) 
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 304



 

38 
 

FORM 7 
INDEPENDENCE AFFIDAVIT 

 
The undersigned individual, being duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
1. He/She is _____________________________ of ____________________________, the 

Proposer that has submitted the attached Proposal; 
 
2.        (a) Below is a list and description of any relationships, professional, financial or 

otherwise that Proposer may have with the Village, its elected or appointed 
officials, its employees or agents or any of its agencies or component units for the 
past five (5) years. 

(b) Additionally, the Proposer agrees and understands that Proposer shall give the 
Village written notice of any other relationships professional, financial or 
otherwise that Proposer enters into with the Village, its elected or appointed 
officials, its employees or agents or any of its agencies or component units during 
the period of the Contract. 

 
(If paragraph 2(a) above does not apply, please indicate by stating, “not applicable” in the space 
below.) 

 
3. I have attached an additional page to this form explaining why such relationships do not 

constitute a conflict of interest relative to performing the services sought in the RFP. 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Signature (Blue ink only) 
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name 
_____________________________________________ 
Title 
_____________________________________________ 
Date 

 
[Acknowledgment on following page.] 
 

Page 305



 

39 
 

Witness my hand and official notary seal/stamp at ____________________________ the day 
and year written above 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 
 
BEFORE ME, an officer duly authorized by law to administer oaths and take 
acknowledgments, personally appeared _____________________________________ as 
______________________________________, of _________________________________, 
an organization authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and acknowledged 
executing the foregoing Affidavit as the proper official of _______________________ for 
the use and purposes mentioned in the Affidavit and affixed the official seal of the 
corporation, and that the instrument is the act and deed of that corporation.  He/She is 
personally known to me or has produced __________________________________ as 
identification. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, I have set my hand and official seal at in the State and 
County aforesaid on this ______ day of ________________________, 201__. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 306



 

40 
 

FORM 8 
CERTIFICATION TO ACCURACY OF PROPOSAL 

 
 

PROPOSER, by executing this Form, hereby certifies and attests that all Forms, Affidavits and 
documents related thereto that it has enclosed in the Proposal in support of its Proposal are true 
and accurate.  Failure by the PROPOSER to attest to the truth and accuracy of such Forms, 
Affidavits and documents shall result in the Proposal being deemed non-responsive and such 
Proposal will not be considered. 
The undersigned individual, being duly sworn, deposes and says that: 

1. He/She is _________________________ of ________________________, the 
PROPOSER that has submitted the attached Proposal; 
 

2. He/She is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached 
Proposal and of all Forms, Affidavits and documents submitted in support of such 
Proposal; 

 
3. All Forms, Affidavits and documents submitted in support of this Proposal and 

included in this Proposal are true and accurate; 
 

4. No information that should have been included in such Forms, Affidavits and 
documents has been omitted; and 
 

5. No information that is included in such Forms, Affidavits or documents is false or 
misleading. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature (Blue ink only) 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Title 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Date 
 
[Acknowledgment on following page.] 

 

Page 307



 

41 
 

Witness my hand and official notary seal/stamp at ____________________________ the day 
and year written above 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 
 
 
BEFORE ME, an officer duly authorized by law to administer oaths and take 
acknowledgments, personally appeared _____________________________________ as 
______________________________________, of _________________________________, 
an organization authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and acknowledged 
executing the foregoing Form as the proper official of _______________________ for the 
use and purposes mentioned in the Form and affixed the official seal of the corporation, and 
that the instrument is the act and deed of that corporation.  He/She is personally known to me 
or has produced __________________________________ as identification. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, I have set my hand and official seal at in the State and 
County aforesaid on this ______ day of ________________________, 201__. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires: 
 

Page 308



 

42 
 

 
FORM 9 

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133 (3)(a), 
FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 

 
THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY 
PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS. 
 
This sworn statement is submitted to the NORTH BAY VILLAGE by: 

 
 __________________________________________________________________________ 
                             [print individual’s name and title] 
 
for________________________________________________________________________ 
                 [print name of entity submitting sworn statement] 
 
whose business address is ____________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is 
____________________ (If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the 
individual signing this sworn statement: ______________________________________). 
 
 
1. I understand that a “public entity crime” as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(g), Florida 

Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly 
related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political 
subdivision of any other state or of the United States, including, but not limited to , any bid or 
contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political 
subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, 
bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation. 

 
2. I understand that “convicted” or “conviction” as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(b), Florida 

Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an 
adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by 
indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or 
entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere. 

 
3. I understand that an “affiliate” as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(a), Florida Statutes, 

means: 
 

a. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or 
 
 
 

Page 309



 

43 
 

b. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of 
the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime.  The term “affiliate” 
includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, 
members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate.  The 
ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in any person, or 
a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value 
under an arm’s length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls 
another person.  A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person 
who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 
months shall be considered an affiliate. 

 
4. I understand that a “person” as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(e), Florida Statutes, means 

any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with 
the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts 
for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or 
applies to transact business with a public entity.  The term “person” includes those officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active 
in management of an entity. 

 
5. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation 

to the entity submitting this sworn statement. [Indicate which statement applies.] 
 

_____  Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are 
active in the management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity has been charged 
with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. 
 
_____  The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are 
active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with 
and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. 
 
_____  The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are 
active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with 
and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent of July 1, 1989.  However, there has 
been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division 
of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer 
determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn 
statement on the convicted vendor list. [Attach a copy of the final order.] 

 
[Acknowledgment on following page.] 

 

Page 310



 

44 
 

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING 
OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY INDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS 
FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY, AND THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH 
DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED.  I ALSO 
UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO 
ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT 
PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY 
CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                 Signature (Blue ink only) 
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 

 
On this the _______ day of ______________, 20 ______, before me, the undersigned 

Notary Public of the State of Florida, personally appeared (Name(s) of individual(s) who 

appeared before notary)______________________________________________ and whose 

name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument, and he/she/they acknowledge that he/she/they 

executed it. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal.    
 
      __________________________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Florida 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC: 
SEAL OF OFFICE:   
_______________________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public:  print, stamp or type as commissioned. 
 
 ____ Personally known to me, or 
  
 ____ Personal identification: 
  __________________________ 
  (Type of Identification Produced) 
 
 ____  Did take an oath, or 
 
 ____ Did Not take an oath

Page 311



12C

Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



13A

Page 315



 

Mayor 
Connie Leon-Kreps 

Vice Mayor 
Eddie Lim 

Commissioner 
Jose R. Alvarez 

Commissioner 
Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby 

Commissioner 
Andreana Jackson 

 

 
 
 
 
 
The Proposed Budget ad valorem was presented using the Estimated Taxable Value of 
$1,032,000,000. The Certification of Taxable Value was received from the Miami-Dade 
Property Appraiser on Friday, July 1st, which showed that the gross taxable value for FY 
2018 is $1,037,240,053. The proposed millage to fund the FY 2018 Budget is 5.3542 or 
an increase of .5110 mills over the FY 2017 rate of 4.8432. The increase in taxable value 
will generate about $28,000 more for FY 2018 and will be an increase in revenue over 
the prior year. This increase will be reflected in line 92 of the Budget Presentation.     
 
However, it is recommended that the millage rate be set at .50 mills, above the rate 
necessary to fund the proposed budget. This will allow for any changes that may occur 
during the September Public Hearings. The Millage Rate can only be lowered at the first 
or second public hearing in September.  
 
The Commission is also required to set the millage rate for the Voted Debt to generate   
$642,881 necessary to fund the Debt Service. This proposed millage rate for FY 2018 is 
.6198 which is a reduction of .091 mills compared to FY 2017 rate of .7108. 
  
BUDGET: 
 
The Proposed Budget presentation includes all the revenue and expense changes from FY 
2017.   
 

Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



1 

North Bay Village 

Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

O F F I C I A L   MINUTES 
SPECIAL VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 

VILLAGE HALL 
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 7, 2017 
7:30 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 7:34 p.m. by Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

ROLL CALL 

Commissioner Jose Alvarez 
Vice Mayor Eddie Lim 
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 
Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson 

Also Present: 

Village Manager Frank K. Rollason 
Deputy Village Manager/HR Director Jenice Rosado 
Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes 
Finance Director Bert Wrains 
Police Chief Carlos Noriega 

14A

Page 346



DRAFT 
Agenda 

Regular Village Commission Meeting 
June 7, 2017 

 

2 

 
 
 
 
 Village Clerk Yvonne P. Hamilton 
 
 The Mayor called for a “Moment of Silence” for the England Bridge terror attack that 
 took place on May 27, 2017. 
 
 The Mayor distributed a copy of the “Oath of Office”, (Exhibit 1) to each member of the 
 Commission and made reference to the language therein to uphold the Constitution and 
 the laws of the State of Florida.  She referred to the disclosure by Commissioner Dr. 
 Douglas N. Hornsby at the May 9th Commission Meeting regarding a past conviction 
 involving cocaine. The Mayor provided a copy of a letter (Exhibit 3) to the other 
 members of Commission, which she drafted, requesting a legal advisory opinion from 
 the Attorney General seeking advice as to whether Dr. Hornsby can legally be on the 
 Commission and whether he lawfully served on the Planning & Zoning Board, due 
 to his conviction. 
 
 The Mayor entered the following documents into the record:  State of Tennessee vs. 
 Douglas N. Hornsby, 1989 Petition for Requisition (Exhibit 2). 
 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion to seek an advisory opinion from the Attorney 
 General; and asked Dr. Hornsby to recuse himself until the opinion is received. 
 
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson pointed out that tonight’s meeting was only to hear the 
 one item on the agenda, and it was illegal to address the matter concerning 
 Commissioner Hornsby, because it was not advertised. 
  
 Village Attorney Robert Switkes advised the Mayor that this Special Meeting was called 
 for the sole purpose of whether or not to cancel the regularly scheduled meeting for the 
 second Tuesday of June and reschedule.  And that any other item to be addressed should 
 have been provided to the Village Clerk and be advertised. 
 
 In response to the Mayor’s comments that the Village Administration failed to apprise  
 her on the matter concerning Dr. Hornsby, Mr. Switkes clarified for the record, that 
 everybody on the dais were apprised that there was an ongoing criminal investigation 
 involving an attempted extortion of a sitting Village Commissioner for the first time at 
 the last Commission Meeting, when Dr. Hornsby’s made the disclosure.  He 
 explained that no information could be disclosed on an ongoing criminal investigation. 
 He also informed the Commission that he had apprised everybody that in addition to 
 advising the FBI and  FDLE, he had contacted the Department of Elections in 
 Tallahassee and ask them for an advisory opinion about some of the issues that the 
 Mayor raised, although not in the context that she stated; and was advised that 
 because of the complexity of the matter to put the information in writing; which he had 
 done and was waiting for a response. 
  

Page 347



DRAFT 
Agenda 

Regular Village Commission Meeting 
June 7, 2017 

 

3 

 The Village Attorney advised the Mayor that it was inappropriate to take any action, 
 except for voting on the passage of extending the meeting; and anything further wouldn’t 
 be properly advertised and shouldn’t be discussed. 
 
 The Mayor stated that there was a fundamental issue that has to be addressed and referred 
 to reports from the media about Dr. Hornsby’s voting records. 
 
 In response to addressing the issue at this time, the Mayor referred to the April 
 Commission Meeting being cancelled and the residents and the Commission entitlement 
 to full  disclosure, since they did not have all of the facts at the May 9th Commission 
 Meeting. She questioned the legality of whether Dr. Hornsby’s is able to vote. 
 
 The Village Attorney advised the Mayor that the matter concerning Dr. Hornsby could be 
 addressed at the Regular Meeting. 
 
 Commissioner Jose Alvarez seconded the motion to seek a legal advisory opinion from 
 the Attorney General regarding Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby legal right to 
 sit on the Village Commission. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to Public Comments. 
 
 Raul Toro, of 7536 Hispanola Avenue, addressed the Commission in opposition to 
 Commissioner Dr. Hornsby sitting on the dais. 
 
 Vice Mayor Lim expressed his disagreement with the Mayor and reminded her of the 
 legal advice given by the Village Attorney and of the matter being under investigation. 
 He spoke about the only matter before the Commission to vote on rescheduling the 
 meeting.  He noted that he had planned a trip over a year ago, and did not want to miss 
 the next meeting. 
  
 Commissioner Jose Alvarez concurred with seeking a legal opinion. 
 
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson and Vice Mayor Eddie Lim expressed opposition to 
 their names being included in the letter that the Mayor had drafted to the Attorney 
 General regarding the legality of Commissioner Hornsby sitting on the dais. 
 
 The Mayor suggested that there should be an objective opinion. 
 
 The Village Attorney again advised the Mayor that it was not proper to vote on an issue 
 that was not properly noticed; and advised her that she could bring the exact motion to 
 the next Regular Commission Meeting.  
 
 The Village Attorney read Section 3.03 of the Charter pertaining to Special Meetings. 
 
 The Mayor chose to move forward with the vote. 
 
 
 
 

Page 348



DRAFT 
Agenda 

Regular Village Commission Meeting 
June 7, 2017 

 

4 

 
 
 Vice Mayor Eddie Lim and Commissioner Andreana Jackson voiced their objection to 
 voting on the  matter. The Village Attorney explained that, if a vote is being taken, 
 everyone on the dais is obligated to participate. 
 
 The vote on the motion to seek an advisory opinion from the Attorney General failed 
 3-2.  The vote was as follows:  Vice Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner Andreana 
 Jackson, and Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby all voting No.  Commissioner Jose 
 Alvarez and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps voted Yes. 
 
2. RESOLUTION 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA,  CHANGING THE DATE OF THE JUNE, 13 2017 
 COMMISSION MEETING; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
 DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 

 The Village Manager Frank K. Rollason explained his purpose for calling the 
 Special Meeting to address a request by Vice Mayor Eddie Lim to change the 
 regularly scheduled meeting of the second Tuesday of the month, June13, 2017; 
 since he had already made plans to be out of the country during that time.  
 
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson made a motion to change the Regular Meeting 
 for June 13, 2017 to July 27, 2017 at 7:30 p.m., and Vice Mayor Eddie Lim 
 seconded the motion.  
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments. 
 
 There being no speakers she closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 4-1 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  
 Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, Vice Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner 
 Jose R. Alvarez, and Commissioner Andreana Jackson all voting Yes.  Mayor 
 Connie Leon-Kreps voted No. 
 
 The Mayor asked the members of the dais if anyone had any legal action, civil or 
 criminal pending at this time. 
 

3. ADJOURNMENT 
 
            The meeting adjourned at _______________ 
 
Prepared by:  Yvonne P. Hamilton 
                      Village Clerk 
 
 

Page 349



DRAFT 
Agenda 

Regular Village Commission Meeting 
June 7, 2017 

 

5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted by North Bay Village on 
 
this _______ day of July 2017. 
 
Connie Leon-Kreps, Mayor 

 
(Note:  The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting.  A copy of the audio recording is available at the Village Clerk’s Office until the time for disposition in 
accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law.) 

 
 

  
 
 

Page 350



North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

O F F I C I A L    MINUTES 
REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 

VILLAGE HALL 
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

TUESDAY, MAY 9, 2017 
7:30 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

A “Moment of Silence” was observed in for Village of Biscayne Park Former Mayor
James Reeder, and MDCLC CITT Representative, who passed away on April 23rd, 2017.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

House Representative David Richardson led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez
Vice Mayor Eddie Lim
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps
Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby
Commissioner Andreana Jackson

ALSO PRESENT:

Village Manager Frank K. Rollason
Deputy Village Manager/HR Director Jenice Rosado
Finance Director Bert Wrains
Police Chief Carlos Noriega
Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes
Village Planner Jim LaRue
Deputy Village Clerk Jenorgen Guillen

14B

Page 351



Page 352



 Vice Mayor Eddie Lim made a motion to retroactively re-appoint Commissioner Dr. 
 Douglas N. Hornsby, as At-Large Commissioner and to re-affirm all of his actions since 
 he has been in office and Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion. 
 
 Alvin Blake, of 7601 Coquina Drive, and Raul Dominguez, of 7904 West Drive,  
 addressed the Commission in support of Commissioner Hornsby. 
 
 The Mayor closed the floor to public comments 
 

The motion was adopted by a 4-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:   Mayor  Connie 
Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose Alvarez,   and Commissioner 
Andreana Jackson all voting Yes. 

  
 The Mayor recessed the meeting at 8:20 p.m. and reconvened at 8:34 p.m. 
 
         C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

 
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson requested that Item 11B be heard before the 

Consent Agenda.  Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps requested that Items 9A, 9B, and 9D 
be removed from the Consent Agenda to be addressed separately. 

 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion to amend the agenda.  Commissioner 

Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby seconded the motion, and all voted in favor. 
 

3. GOOD & WELFARE 
 
 Alvin Blake, of 7601 Coquina Drive, and Armando Hernandez, of 1819 Kennedy 
 Causeway, addressed the Commission. 
 
 At this time Lobbyist Fausto Gomez discussed legislative issues. 
 
4. GRANT WRITER’S REPORT 
 
 The Village Grant Writer Lakeesha Morris, of BellTower Consulting Group, LLC, 
 reported on the status of Village grants. 
 
5. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS 
 
 A. ANIMAL CONTROL ADVISORY BOARD 
 
   A report was not provided. 
  
 B. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
   
  A report was not provided. 
 
  
  

Page 353



C. CITIZENS BUDGET & OVERSIGHT BOARD 
   
  Laura Cattabriga, Chair of the Board, presented the report. 
 

 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion for the Financial Advisor to make a 
 report to the Citizens Budget & Oversight Board, prior to their report to the 
 Commission, as requested by the Board.  Vice Mayor Eddie Lim seconded the 
 motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.   
 
 Raul Toro, of 7636 Hispanola Avenue, addressed the Commission. 

 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Vice 
 Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana 
 Jackson, Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 
 all voting Yes. 

   
 D. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD 
  
  A report was not provided. 
 
 E. PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 
  A report was not provided. 
 
6. VILLAGE COMMISSION’S REPORT 
 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, and Commissioner 
 Andreana Jackson all provided verbal reports. 
 
7. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 The Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes provided a verbal report. 
 
8. VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORTS 
 
 The Village Manager Frank K. Rollason presented his report, as well as the Finance 
 Report, Public Safety Report, and Public Works Report. 
 
 At the request of the Village Manager to hold a Budget Workshop, Mayor Connie Leon-
 Kreps made a motion to hold a Budget Workshop on June 20, 2017 at 6:30 p.m.  Vice 
 Mayor Eddie Lim seconded the motion, which was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The 
 vote was as follows:  Vice Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose Alvarez, Commissioner 
 Andreana Jackson, Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, and Mayor Connie Leon-
 Kreps all voting Yes. 
 
  

Page 354



9.     CONSENT AGENDA: (Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are 
not expected to require discussion or review. Items will be adopted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired by any member of the Commission, that item must be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.) 

 
 C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE PUBLIC WELFARE, 
 AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER, ON BEHALF OF THE 
 NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT, TO ENTER INTO 
 A LAW ENFORCEMENT MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT WITH THE 
 CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

  
E. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AWARDING SCHOLARSHIPS TO 
 GRADUATING HIGH SCHOOL SENIORS IN THE VILLAGE; 
 SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
 MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 

 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items 
 9C and 9E.  Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion, which 
 was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Vice Mayor 
 Eddie  Lim, Commissioner  Jose Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, 
 Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps all 
 voting Yes. 

 
11B.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING AN APPLICATION BY CARLOS MEGIAS FOR 
A SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.098 OF 
THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TO OPERATE A 
GUIDED BOAT TOUR BUSINESS FROM THE MARINA AT 1819 
KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, IN THE CL, LIMITED COMMERCIAL 
ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; FINDINGS; AND 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK 
K. ROLLASON) 

   
  The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
  The Village Planner, Jim LaRue, of LaRue Planning & Management Services, 

 Inc. presented the Staff Report recommending approval of the request with the 
 following conditions: 

 
 1.  If the special use exception to operate the commercial parking lot at 1755 

 Kennedy Causeway expires or is revoked for any reason, this special use 
 exception to operate the boat tour at 1819 Kennedy Causeway shall be 
 revoked.  

 

Page 355



 2. If any operations of the boat tour use become a nuisance for neighboring 
 Village residents or business owners, or if the use causes  environmental 
 damage to the  Bay, the Village Commission may  vote to revoke this 
 special use exception  approval.  

 
 3.  Applicant must maintain a BTR for operation of the proposed boat tour 

 operation.  
 

 4.  Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. 
 Specifically, no new development application shall be accepted and 
 no building permit or  certificate of occupancy shall be issued for the 
 property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and 
 outstanding fees and  fines related to the property  (including fees related 
 to any previous development  proposal applications on the property), 
 have been paid in full.  

 
 5.  Approval of this special use exception does not in any way create a right 

 on the  part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal 
 agency, and  does not create liability on the part of the Village for 
 approval if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the 
 obligations imposed  by a state or federal agency or undertakes action 
 that results in a violation of  federal or state law.  

 
 6.  All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before 

 commencement of operations.  
 
 7. Approval is contingent upon the Business Tax Receipt (BTR) at 1755 

 Kennedy Causeway.  If the BTR expires or is rescinded for any reason, 
 the Tour Boat services will be terminated since there is not sufficient 
 parking. 

 
 8. Personal flotation devices (PFDs) for children and adults shall be 

 provided for all customers and must be US Coast Guard approved  Type II 
 PFDs/Near Shore Buoyant Vests. All passengers must don their PFD prior 
 to leaving the dock or  staging area and continue to wear while aboard 
 the vessels. 

 
 The Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes read Chapter 29 of the Village Code 

regarding the conduct of Quasi-Judicial proceedings; and he swore in those 
individuals who indicated that they would testify. 

 
 The Mayor opened the Public Hearing. 
 
 The General Manager of Shucker’s Restaurant, Armando Hernandez addressed the 

Commission. 
 
 The applicant Carlos Megias accepted the conditions of approval as set forth above. 
 
 The Mayor closed the Public Hearing. 

Page 356



 
 Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby made a motion to approve the request, and 

Commissioner Jose Alvarez seconded the motion.  The motion was adopted by a 5-0 
roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor 
Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, and 
Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby all voting Yes. 

 
 A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, RESOLVING THE MATTER OF CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 FINES IMPOSED AGAINST KARINA GONZALEZ OF 7928 WEST DR 
 #504, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING THE 
 APPROPRIATE VILLAGE OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS 
 NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE SETTLEMENT; TO EXECUTE AND 
 FILE ANY REQUIRED DOCUMENTS WITH THE CLERK OF COURT; 
 AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
 VILLAGE ATTORNEY ROBERT L. SWITKES) 
 
 The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 This item was tabled to provide the magistrate records and the Building Permits. 
 
B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA,  RESOLVING THE MATTER OF CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 FINES IMPOSED AGAINST BAYVIEW VILLAGES AT 7915 EAST 
 DRIVE, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING THE 
 APPROPRIATE VILLAGE OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS 
 NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE SETTLEMENT; TO EXECUTE 
 AND FILE ANY REQUIRED DOCUMENTS WITH THE CLERK OF 
 COURT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE ATTORNEY ROBERT L.  SWITKES) 

 
 The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 This item was tabled to provide the magistrate records and the Building Permits. 

 
 D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, PLEDGING TO INCREASE THE UTILITY RATES 
 NECESSARY TO FUND THE DEBT SERVICES ON THE FLORIDA 
 DEPARTMENT OF  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (FDEP) LOANS 
 FOR THE WATER MAIN REHABILITATION PROJECT AND THE 
 WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROJECT; AND SETTING AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
 FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

  
          The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion to table the item to allow notice to the 

residents via the utility bills and on the Village’s website; and Commissioner Dr. 
Douglas N. Hornsby seconded the motion. 

Page 357



 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she closed 

the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Mayor 

Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose Alvarez, 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson, and Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby all 
voting Yes. 

 
10. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
 A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH 
 BELLTOWER CONSULTING GROUP, LLC  FOR THE PURPOSE 
 OF PROVIDING PROFESSIONAL GRANT WRITING SERVICES; 
 AUTHORIZING VILLAGE OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL 
 NECESSARY STEPS TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF THE 
 AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
 EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
  The Village Manager made a brief presentation on the item explaining that the 

 agreement will take effect on October 1, 2017. 
 
  Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion to approve the Resolution, and Vice 

 Mayor Eddie Lim seconded the motion. 
 
 
  The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
  The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Vice 

 Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana J
 Jackson, Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps all 
 voting Yes. 

 
 B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE VILLAGE 
 MANAGER, AND AWARDING BID NO. NBV 2017-001 FOR THE WATER 
 METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM TO SANCHEZ ARANGO 
 CONSTRUCTION; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
 ENTER INTO THE RELATED CONTRACTS PURSUANT TO THE SCOPE 
 OF SERVICES OUTLINED IN THE BID DOCUMENTS; AND SETTING 
 AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK 
 K. ROLLASON) 

 

Page 358



  The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title 
 
  The Village Manager made a brief presentation on the item, explaining that all 377 

 water meters in the Village will be replaced.  He noted that approval of the loan 
 from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection is contingent upon 
 adoption of the Resolution. 

 
  Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby made a motion to approve the Resolution, 

 and Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez seconded the motion. 
 
  The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
  The motion was adopted by a 4-1 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Vice 

 Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, 
 and Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby all voting Yes.  Mayor Connie Leon-
 Kreps voted No. 
 
C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING THE PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH 
 KIMLEY-HORN & ASSOCIATES, INC. (WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 
 17-02) FOR THE WATER  METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 
 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES; AUTHORIZING VILLAGE 
 OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO IMPLEMENT THE 
 TERMS OF THE PROJECT AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
 VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE PROJECT AGREEMENT; 
 AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
 VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 
  The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 

 
Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby made a motion to approve the

 Resolution, and Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

 Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor 
 Eddie  Lim, Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, and Commissioner Andreana 
 Jackson all voting Yes. 

 
  

Page 359



D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 17-03 WITH 
 KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR ADDITIONAL 
 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES FOR THE SANITARY SEWER 
 REHABILITATION PROGRAM; TO INCLUDE, BUT NOT LIMITED TO 
 PROGRESS MEETINGS, PROGRAM EVALUATION, PUBLIC 
 INVOLVEMENT ASSISTANCE, RESIDENT PROJECT 
 REPRESENTATIVE, SHOP DRAWING REVIEW, CONTRACT 
 CLARIFICATION, REVIEW OF PAY APPLICATIONS, COORDINATION 
 WITH SRF PROGRAM, AND PROJECT CERTIFICATION AND CLOSE-
 OUT AT A LUMP-SUM COMPENSATION OF $66,400; SETTING AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE  (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

 
 The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 

  Commissioner Andreana Jackson made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 
Vice Mayor Eddie Lim seconded the motion. 

 
   The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
  The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor 
Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, and Commissioner Andreana Jackson 
all voting Yes.    

 
 11A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING MODIFICATION TO A SPECIAL USE 
 EXCEPTION GRANTED TO BAYSHORE YACHT & TENNIS CLUB 
 CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 
 152.105(C)(9) OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
 TO CONSTRUCT A PARKING LOT AT 7904 WEST DRIVE, HARBOR 
 ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FINDINGS, 
 PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR 
 CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR 
 VIOLATION OF CONDITIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

   
  The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 The Village Planner Jim LaRue, of LaRue Planning & Management Services, 
 Inc. presented the Staff Report recommending approval of the request with the 
 following conditions: 
 

 1) Submittal of an irrigation plan which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A 
 requirements.  

Page 360



 2) Parking spaces shall be made available only to residents of the Bayshore Yacht 
 and Tennis Club and their guests.  

 3) Payment of any applicable impact fees.  

 4) Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, 
 no new development application shall be accepted and no building permit or 
 certificate of  occupancy shall be issued for the property until all application 
 fees, cost recovery deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the 
 property (including fees related to any previous development proposal 
 applications on the property), have been paid in full.  

 5) Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building 
 Official prior to commencement of construction.  

 6) Approval of this site plan does not in any way create a right on the part of the 
 applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create 
 liability on the part of the Village for approval if the applicant fails to obtain 
 requisite approvals or fulfill the  obligations imposed by a state or federal 
 agency or undertakes action that result in a  violation of federal or state law.  

 7) All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before 
 commencement of construction.  

 
 The architect for the project, of Juan E. Berry, RA, of 2640 S. Bayshore Drive, 
 Suite 301, Miami, Florida, 33131, described the construction of the  parking lot. 

  
  Tom Robertson, of Bercow, Radell, Hernandez, 200 S. Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 

 850, Miami, FL  33131 counsel for the applicant, discussed the ability for a 
 second or third level parking structure. 

 
   The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
 
  Tania Soberon, of 7904 West Drive, address the Commission on assisting the 

 residents in finding a parking solution for Harbor Island. 
 
   The Mayor closed the Public Hearing. 
 

  The legal counsel for the project accepted the conditions of approval as set forth 
   above. 
 

  Commissioner Andreana Jackson made a motion to approve the request with the 
conditions set forth above by the Village Planner.  Vice Mayor Eddie Lim seconded 
the motion, which was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  
Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor 
Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, and Commissioner Andreana Jackson 
all voting Yes. 

 

Page 361



  At this time the Mayor moved to extend the meeting to 12:30 p.m.  Vice Mayor 
Eddie Lim seconded the motion, and all voted in favor. 

 
 E. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE 
 THE PURCHASE OF TWO VACANT PARCELS OF LAND AT 7631 AND 
 7701 COQUINA DRIVE, NORTH BAY VILLAGE; FURTHER 
 AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO OBTAIN A CURRENT 
 LAND SURVEY AND AN INDEPENDENT APPRAISAL OF BOTH 
 PARCELS; SUBMITTING THE CONTRACT PROPOSAL TO THE 
 VILLAGE COMMISSION FOR CONSIDERATION; AND SETTING AN 
 EFFECTIVE  DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

 
  The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
  
  Vice Mayor Eddie Lim made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 

 Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion. 
  
  The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
  The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

 Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Commissioner 
 Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, and Vice Mayor Eddie Lim 
 all voting Yes. 

 
 F. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE 
 COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD FOR INSTALLATION OF “NO 
 DUMPING SIGNAGE” THROUGHOUT THE VILLAGE; 
 AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO CARRY OUT THE  AIMS 
 OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
  Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 

 Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion. 
 
  The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
  The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Vice 

 Mayor Eddie Lim, Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana 
 Jackson, Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 
 all voting Yes. 

 

Page 362



  At this time the Mayor moved to extend the meeting to 1:00 a.m.  Commissioner 
 Andreana Jackson seconded the motion, and all voted in favor. 

 
 G. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING A CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH GOMEZ 
 BARKER ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING 
 AND LOBBYING SERVICES BEFORE THE LEGISLATURE OF THE 
 STATE OF FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
 EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE  EXPENDITURE OF 
 BUDGETED FUNDS; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  Item 10G was deferred to the next Commission Meeting. 
 
 H. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING A CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH FRANCO 
 GOVERNMENT RELATIONS, INC. FOR FEDERAL LOBBYING 
 CONSULTING SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER 
 TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
 EXPENDITURE OF  BUDGETED FUNDS; AND SETTING AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE.   (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

 
  Item 10H was deferred to the next Commission Meeting. 
 

I. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE PROPOSAL FROM 
 WOLFBERG ALVAREZ & PARTNERS TO ASSIST THE VILLAGE 
 IN THE PREPARATION OF A RFQ (REQUEST FOR 
 QUALIFICATIONS) FOR A CONSTRUCTION  MANAGER AT 
 RISK; AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPOSAL; 
 AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED FUNDS; 
 AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
 VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 Vice Mayor Eddie Lim made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 

 Commissioner Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

 Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Commissioner 
 Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, and Vice Mayor Eddie Lim 
 all voting Yes. 

 

Page 363



J. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE VILLAGE 
 MANAGER TO AWARD RFP NO. NBV 2017-002 TO PRO SERVICE 
 GROUP, LLC FOR FIRE HYDRANT REPLACEMENT, MAILBOX 
 RELOCATION, AND PARKING SPACE INSTALLATION AT HARBOR 
 ISLAND; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
 THE RELATED AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO THE SCOPE OF 
 SERVICE OUTLINED IN THE RFP; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE.  (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

 
 The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 Vice Mayor Eddie Lim made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 

 Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

 Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Commissioner 
 Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, and Vice Mayor Eddie Lim 
 all voting Yes. 

 
K. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING A THREE-YEAR CONTRACT WITH SFM 
 SERVICES, INC. TO PROVIDE LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE 
 SERVICES FOR THE VILLAGE; AUTHORIZING THE 
 EXPENDITURE OF $4,018 FROM THE UNRESERVED FUND 
 BALANCE; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
 EXECUTE THE CONTRACT; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE 
 OFFICIALS TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 
 THE CONTRACT; AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF 
 BUDGETED FUNDS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
 DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K.  ROLLASON) 

 
 The Deputy Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 

 Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 4-1 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

 Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Commissioner 
 Dr. Douglas N. Hornsby, and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps all voting Yes.  Vice 
 Mayor Eddie Lim voted No. 

 

Page 364



11. PUBLIC HEARINGS ITEMS INCLUDING ORDINANCES FOR SECOND 
 READING: Please be advised that if you wish to comment upon any of these quasi-judicial items, please inform the Mayor 
 when she requests public comments.  An opportunity for persons to speak on each item will be made available after the applicant 
 and staffs have made  their presentations on each item. All testimony, including public testimony and evidence, will be made 
 under oath or affirmation. Additionally, each person who gives testimony may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse 
 either to be cross-examined or to be sworn, your testimony will be given its due weight.  The general public will not be permitted 
 to cross-examine witnesses, but the public may request the Commission to ask questions of staff or witnesses on their behalf. 
 Persons representing organizations must present evidence of their authority to speak for the organization. Further, details of the 
 quasi-judicial procedures may be obtained from the Village Clerk. 
 

C. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF  NORTH   BAY VILLAGE,  
 FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 151, ENTITLED “BUILDINGS” BY 
 AMENDING SECTION 151.11 TO REQUIRE CONDOMINIUM 
 ASSOCIATION APPROVAL FOR WORK PERFORMED INSIDE A 
 CONDOMINIUM UNIT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 
 CONFLICT, INCLUSION IN THE VILLAGE CODE; AND AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY MAYOR CONNIE LEON-
 KREPS) – SECOND READING 
 
 Item 11C was deferred to the next Commission Meeting. 
 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
 There was no unfinished business. 
 
13. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. APPOINTMENT OF ADVISORY BOARD MEMBERS 
 
  1. ANIMAL CONTROL ADVISORY BOARD 
  2. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD 
 
  Item 13A was deferred to the next Commission Meeting. 
 
 B. DISCUSSION REGARDING COMMERCIAL ADVERTISING BOAT  
  (COMMISSIONER ANDREANA JACKSON) 
 
  Item 13B was deferred to the next Commission Meeting. 
 
14. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – COMMISSION MEETINGS 
 
 A. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING - MARCH 28, 2017 
 B. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING – MARCH 14, 2017 
 C. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2017 
 
  Approval of the Minutes was deferred to the next Commission Meeting. 
 
  

Page 365



15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 The meeting adjourned at 12:49 p.m. 

 
Prepared by:  Yvonne P. Hamilton 
                      Village Clerk 
 
 
Adopted by North Bay Village on 
 
this ____ day of __________ 2017. 
 
Connie Leon-Kreps, Mayor 

 
 

(Note:  The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting.  A copy of the audio recording is available at the Village Clerk’s 
Office until the time for disposition in accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law.) 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 366



14C

Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



14D

Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



14E

Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



MONTHLY STAT 
REPORTS 



7/3/2017 3:31:49 PM Page 1 of 6

JUNE 2017 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT
North Bay Village, FL Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2016-2017 Period Ending: 06/30/2017

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

Fund: 001 - GENERAL
Revenue

5,090,255.74341,301.185,302,653.00 5,302,653.00 0.00 -212,397.2631 - Taxes 4.01 %
239,421.2534,013.44461,000.00 461,000.00 0.00 -221,578.7532 - Licenses, Fees & Permits 48.06 %
572,584.9369,557.42859,000.00 859,000.00 0.00 -286,415.0733 - Intergovernmental Revenues 33.34 %

64,294.0111,068.0491,680.00 91,680.00 0.00 -27,385.9934 - Charges for Services 29.87 %
127,602.8112,017.5097,000.00 97,000.00 0.00 30,602.8135 - Fines & Forfeits 31.55 %
126,395.444,518.7481,500.00 81,500.00 0.00 44,895.4436 - Miscellaneous Revenues 55.09 %
592,827.7565,869.75790,443.00 838,443.00 0.00 -245,615.2538 - Other Sources & Transfers In 29.29 %

6,813,381.93538,346.077,683,276.00 7,731,276.00 0.00 -917,894.07Revenue Total: 11.87 %

Expense
39,555.074,058.8566,083.00 66,083.00 0.00 26,527.93511 - LEGISLATIVE 40.14 %

514,630.3272,859.43714,956.00 714,956.00 0.00 200,325.68512 - EXECUTIVE 28.02 %
329,673.9855,442.59443,722.00 443,722.00 300.00 113,748.02513 - FINANCIAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 25.63 %
157,935.2015,748.70204,000.00 204,000.00 30,000.00 16,064.80514 - LEGAL COUNSEL 7.87 %
971,373.95121,237.161,116,060.00 1,161,060.00 28,113.92 161,572.13519 - OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES 13.92 %

3,441,035.74534,508.094,901,355.00 4,894,355.01 70,575.28 1,382,743.99521 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 28.25 %
190,803.616,021.14237,100.00 247,100.00 1,387.50 54,908.89574 - SPECIAL EVENTS 22.22 %

5,645,007.87809,875.967,683,276.00 7,731,276.01 130,376.70 1,955,891.44Expense Total: 25.30 %

1,168,374.06-271,529.890.00 -0.01 -130,376.70 1,037,997.37Fund: 001 - GENERAL Surplus (Deficit): 10,379,973,700.00 %

Fund: 105 - STATE FORFEITURES
Revenue

3,000.003,000.000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.0035 - Fines & Forfeits 0.00 %
1,546.270.000.00 0.00 0.00 1,546.2736 - Miscellaneous Revenues 0.00 %
4,546.273,000.000.00 0.00 0.00 4,546.27Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Expense
46,481.002,795.000.00 0.00 20,444.91 -66,925.91521 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 0.00 %
46,481.002,795.000.00 0.00 20,444.91 -66,925.91Expense Total: 0.00 %

-41,934.73205.000.00 0.00 -20,444.91 -62,379.64Fund: 105 - STATE FORFEITURES Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 107 - FEDERAL FORFEITURES
Revenue

300,192.270.000.00 0.00 0.00 300,192.2735 - Fines & Forfeits 0.00 %
28,400.760.000.00 0.00 0.00 28,400.7636 - Miscellaneous Revenues 0.00 %



JUNE 2017 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2016-2017 Period Ending: 06/30/2017

7/3/2017 3:31:49 PM Page 2 of 6

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

328,593.030.000.00 0.00 0.00 328,593.03Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Expense
392,269.9377,631.21417,775.00 417,775.00 400.00 25,105.07521 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 6.01 %
392,269.9377,631.21417,775.00 417,775.00 400.00 25,105.07Expense Total: 6.01 %

-63,676.90-77,631.21-417,775.00 -417,775.00 -400.00 353,698.10Fund: 107 - FEDERAL FORFEITURES Surplus (Deficit): 84.66 %

Fund: 110 - PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND
Revenue

4,067.820.000.00 0.00 0.00 4,067.8232 - Licenses, Fees & Permits 0.00 %
4,067.820.000.00 0.00 0.00 4,067.82Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Expense
85,431.350.000.00 0.00 5,600.00 -91,031.35572 - PARKS AND RECREATION 0.00 %
85,431.350.000.00 0.00 5,600.00 -91,031.35Expense Total: 0.00 %

-81,363.530.000.00 0.00 -5,600.00 -86,963.53Fund: 110 - PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 111 - BUILDING FEES FUND
Revenue

381,190.5564,682.76570,000.00 570,000.00 0.00 -188,809.4532 - Licenses, Fees & Permits 33.12 %
23,914.052,545.754,764.00 4,764.00 0.00 19,150.0536 - Miscellaneous Revenues -401.97 %

405,104.6067,228.51574,764.00 574,764.00 0.00 -169,659.40Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 29.52 %

Expense
289,377.6525,464.94574,764.00 574,764.00 91,084.53 194,301.82524 - PROTECTIVE INSPECTIONS 33.81 %
289,377.6525,464.94574,764.00 574,764.00 91,084.53 194,301.82Expense Total: 33.81 %

115,726.9541,763.570.00 0.00 -91,084.53 24,642.42Fund: 111 - BUILDING FEES FUND Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 112 - STREET MAINTENANCE FUND
Revenue

80,519.6710,726.24124,000.00 124,000.00 0.00 -43,480.3331 - Taxes 35.06 %
40,548.234,505.3556,808.00 56,808.00 0.00 -16,259.7733 - Intergovernmental Revenues 28.62 %

2,126.03709.002,833.00 2,833.00 0.00 -706.9734 - Charges for Services 24.95 %
8,780.75565.002,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 6,780.7536 - Miscellaneous Revenues -339.04 %

134,701.4714,966.83179,610.00 179,610.00 0.00 -44,908.5338 - Other Sources & Transfers In 25.00 %
266,676.1531,472.42365,251.00 365,251.00 0.00 -98,574.85Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 26.99 %

Expense
254,738.2727,823.28365,251.00 365,251.00 22,486.88 88,025.85541 - ROADS AND STREET FACILITIES 24.10 %
254,738.2727,823.28365,251.00 365,251.00 22,486.88 88,025.85Expense Total: 24.10 %

11,937.883,649.140.00 0.00 -22,486.88 -10,549.00Fund: 112 - STREET MAINTENANCE FUND Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 114 - AFTER SCHOOL SUMMER CAMP
Revenue

70,162.3811,351.73169,252.00 169,252.00 0.00 -99,089.6233 - Intergovernmental Revenues 58.55 %



JUNE 2017 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2016-2017 Period Ending: 06/30/2017

7/3/2017 3:31:49 PM Page 3 of 6

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

4,815.00535.006,428.00 6,428.00 0.00 -1,613.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 25.09 %
74,977.3811,886.73175,680.00 175,680.00 0.00 -100,702.62Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 57.32 %

Expense
106,090.9217,143.20175,680.00 175,680.00 0.00 69,589.08572 - PARKS AND RECREATION 39.61 %
106,090.9217,143.20175,680.00 175,680.00 0.00 69,589.08Expense Total: 39.61 %

-31,113.54-5,256.470.00 0.00 0.00 -31,113.54Fund: 114 - AFTER SCHOOL SUMMER CAMP Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 115 - TRANSPORTATION FUND
Revenue

138,384.0024,460.00320,000.00 320,000.00 0.00 -181,616.0031 - Taxes 56.76 %
0.000.002,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 -2,000.0036 - Miscellaneous Revenues 100.00 %

41,436.004,604.00898,990.00 898,990.00 0.00 -857,554.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 95.39 %
179,820.0029,064.001,220,990.00 1,220,990.00 0.00 -1,041,170.00Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 85.27 %

Expense
98,400.389,266.981,220,990.00 1,220,990.00 869.03 1,121,720.59541 - ROADS AND STREET FACILITIES 91.87 %
98,400.389,266.981,220,990.00 1,220,990.00 869.03 1,121,720.59Expense Total: 91.87 %

81,419.6219,797.020.00 0.00 -869.03 80,550.59Fund: 115 - TRANSPORTATION FUND Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 116 - POLICE IMPROVEMENTS FUND
Revenue

1,744.280.000.00 0.00 0.00 1,744.2832 - Licenses, Fees & Permits 0.00 %
1,744.280.000.00 0.00 0.00 1,744.28Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Expense
3,055.480.003,462.00 3,462.00 0.00 406.52521 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 11.74 %
3,055.480.003,462.00 3,462.00 0.00 406.52Expense Total: 11.74 %

-1,311.200.00-3,462.00 -3,462.00 0.00 2,150.80Fund: 116 - POLICE IMPROVEMENTS FUND Surplus (Deficit): 62.13 %

Fund: 250 - DEBT SERVICE
Revenue

619,143.800.00648,059.00 648,059.00 0.00 -28,915.2031 - Taxes 4.46 %
619,143.800.00648,059.00 648,059.00 0.00 -28,915.20Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 4.46 %

Expense
648,048.030.00648,059.00 648,059.00 0.00 10.97517 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS 0.00 %
648,048.030.00648,059.00 648,059.00 0.00 10.97Expense Total: 0.00 %

-28,904.230.000.00 0.00 0.00 -28,904.23Fund: 250 - DEBT SERVICE Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 325 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Revenue

0.000.00100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 -100,000.0033 - Intergovernmental Revenues 100.00 %
47,925.800.000.00 0.00 0.00 47,925.8036 - Miscellaneous Revenues 0.00 %

0.000.001,281,000.00 1,281,000.00 0.00 -1,281,000.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %



JUNE 2017 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2016-2017 Period Ending: 06/30/2017

7/3/2017 3:31:49 PM Page 4 of 6

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

47,925.800.001,381,000.00 1,381,000.00 0.00 -1,333,074.20Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 96.53 %

Expense
0.000.0061,000.00 61,000.00 0.00 61,000.00572 - PARKS AND RECREATION 100.00 %

85,645.3112,297.001,320,000.00 1,320,000.00 145,653.00 1,088,701.69630 - CAPITAL PROJECTS 82.48 %
85,645.3112,297.001,381,000.00 1,381,000.00 145,653.00 1,149,701.69Expense Total: 83.25 %

-37,719.51-12,297.000.00 0.00 -145,653.00 -183,372.51Fund: 325 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 360 - WATER IMPROVEMENTS TRUST
Revenue

0.000.009,100,000.00 9,100,000.00 0.00 -9,100,000.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %
0.000.009,100,000.00 9,100,000.00 0.00 -9,100,000.00Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 100.00 %

Expense
4,940.000.009,100,000.00 9,100,000.00 0.00 9,095,060.00533 - WATER UTILITY 99.95 %
4,940.000.009,100,000.00 9,100,000.00 0.00 9,095,060.00Expense Total: 99.95 %

-4,940.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 -4,940.00Fund: 360 - WATER IMPROVEMENTS TRUST Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 365 - SEWER IMPROVEMENTS
Revenue

60.660.000.00 0.00 0.00 60.6636 - Miscellaneous Revenues 0.00 %
661,816.1833,634.0213,078,959.00 13,078,959.00 0.00 -12,417,142.8238 - Other Sources & Transfers In 94.94 %
661,876.8433,634.0213,078,959.00 13,078,959.00 0.00 -12,417,082.16Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 94.94 %

Expense
853,767.870.0013,078,959.00 13,078,959.00 0.00 12,225,191.13535 - SEWER/WASTERWATER SERVICE 93.47 %
853,767.870.0013,078,959.00 13,078,959.00 0.00 12,225,191.13Expense Total: 93.47 %

-191,891.0333,634.020.00 0.00 0.00 -191,891.03Fund: 365 - SEWER IMPROVEMENTS Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 370 - SANITATION IMPROVEMENTS
Revenue

48,749.945,416.6665,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 -16,250.0638 - Other Sources & Transfers In 25.00 %
48,749.945,416.6665,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 -16,250.06Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 25.00 %

Expense
0.000.0065,000.00 65,000.00 592,899.84 -527,899.84534 - GARBAGE/SOLID WASTE SERVI -812.15 %
0.000.0065,000.00 65,000.00 592,899.84 -527,899.84Expense Total: -812.15 %

48,749.945,416.660.00 0.00 -592,899.84 -544,149.90Fund: 370 - SANITATION IMPROVEMENTS Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 430 - UTILITIES
Revenue

12,195.340.000.00 0.00 0.00 12,195.3432 - Licenses, Fees & Permits 0.00 %
4,084,436.651,075.775,530,503.15 5,530,503.15 0.00 -1,446,066.5034 - Charges for Services 26.15 %

1,765.67170.00520.00 520.00 0.00 1,245.6736 - Miscellaneous Revenues -239.55 %
4,098,397.661,245.775,531,023.15 5,531,023.15 0.00 -1,432,625.49Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 25.90 %



JUNE 2017 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2016-2017 Period Ending: 06/30/2017

7/3/2017 3:31:49 PM Page 5 of 6

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

Expense
1,655,658.32222,861.052,486,037.15 2,486,037.15 17,594.16 812,784.67533 - WATER UTILITY 32.69 %

892,309.9796,212.671,080,790.00 1,080,790.00 240.00 188,240.03534 - GARBAGE/SOLID WASTE SERVI 17.42 %
1,352,303.66150,082.511,964,196.00 1,964,196.00 30,570.00 581,322.34535 - SEWER/WASTERWATER SERVICE 29.60 %
3,900,271.95469,156.235,531,023.15 5,531,023.15 48,404.16 1,582,347.04Expense Total: 28.61 %

198,125.71-467,910.460.00 0.00 -48,404.16 149,721.55Fund: 430 - UTILITIES Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 440 - STORM WATER
Revenue

0.000.00372,644.00 372,644.00 0.00 -372,644.0033 - Intergovernmental Revenues 100.00 %
77,890.88101.85874,282.00 874,282.00 0.00 -796,391.1234 - Charges for Services 91.09 %

0.000.00673,269.00 673,269.00 0.00 -673,269.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %
77,890.88101.851,920,195.00 1,920,195.00 0.00 -1,842,304.12Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 95.94 %

Expense
53,868.181,674.581,920,195.00 1,920,195.00 5,125.00 1,861,201.82538 - STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 96.93 %
53,868.181,674.581,920,195.00 1,920,195.00 5,125.00 1,861,201.82Expense Total: 96.93 %

24,022.70-1,572.730.00 0.00 -5,125.00 18,897.70Fund: 440 - STORM WATER Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): -731,732.35 1,165,502.19-421,237.00 -421,237.01 -1,063,344.05 523,395.15 124.25 %



JUNE 2017 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2016-2017 Period Ending: 06/30/2017

7/3/2017 3:31:49 PM Page 6 of 6

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

001 - GENERAL 1,168,374.06-271,529.890.00 -0.01 -130,376.70 1,037,997.37
105 - STATE FORFEITURES -41,934.73205.000.00 0.00 -20,444.91 -62,379.64
107 - FEDERAL FORFEITURES -63,676.90-77,631.21-417,775.00 -417,775.00 -400.00 353,698.10
110 - PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND -81,363.530.000.00 0.00 -5,600.00 -86,963.53
111 - BUILDING FEES FUND 115,726.9541,763.570.00 0.00 -91,084.53 24,642.42
112 - STREET MAINTENANCE FUND 11,937.883,649.140.00 0.00 -22,486.88 -10,549.00
114 - AFTER SCHOOL SUMMER CAMP -31,113.54-5,256.470.00 0.00 0.00 -31,113.54
115 - TRANSPORTATION FUND 81,419.6219,797.020.00 0.00 -869.03 80,550.59
116 - POLICE IMPROVEMENTS FUND -1,311.200.00-3,462.00 -3,462.00 0.00 2,150.80
250 - DEBT SERVICE -28,904.230.000.00 0.00 0.00 -28,904.23
325 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND -37,719.51-12,297.000.00 0.00 -145,653.00 -183,372.51
360 - WATER IMPROVEMENTS TRUST -4,940.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 -4,940.00
365 - SEWER IMPROVEMENTS -191,891.0333,634.020.00 0.00 0.00 -191,891.03
370 - SANITATION IMPROVEMENTS 48,749.945,416.660.00 0.00 -592,899.84 -544,149.90
430 - UTILITIES 198,125.71-467,910.460.00 0.00 -48,404.16 149,721.55
440 - STORM WATER 24,022.70-1,572.730.00 0.00 -5,125.00 18,897.70

Report Surplus (Deficit): -731,732.35 1,165,502.19-421,237.00 -421,237.01 -1,063,344.05 523,395.15



OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP YTD

PERMITS/UPFRONT 
FEES/HOLD HARMLESS/ 
EXTENTIONS/CERT OF 
COMPETION/CERT OF 
OCCUPANCY/REINSPECTI
ON /BLDG 
RECERTIFICATIONS $26,850.05 $25,038.21 $50,094.57 $30,888.40 $21,480.53 $91,090.97 $34,855.40 $36,084.66 $64,682.76 $381,065.55
VISITORS 260 249 226 181 188 276 240 354 231 2205

PERMIT APPLICATIONS/ 
REVISIONS 91 87 81 56 47 101 78 106 94 741
BLDG 
INSPECTIONS/REVIEW 91 130 129 90 60 133 79 77 104 893
ELEC INSPECTIONS 45 31 51 31 34 42 24 49 30 337
MECH INSPECTIONS 27 29 22 19 24 18 15 22 11 187
PLUMBG INSPECTIONS 99 55 61 53 15 42 47 54 55 481

STRUCTURAL REVIEWS 13 21 11 0 10 18 14 17 14 118

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
MONTHLY REPORTS 2016-17

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

*Not available



OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP YTD

VISITORS 195 175 290 202 174 258 250 247 236 2027

PASSPORT ISSUED 42 46 30 33 32 92 70 74 62 481
NOTARY SERVICES 11 8 8 11 12 16 11 13 25 115

TAX RECEIPTS (OCCUP 
LICENSES) $15,653.14 $7,338.87 $8,677.40 $575.88 $3,051.45 $11,414.41 $3,483.51 $2,409.25 $751.75 $53,355.66

LIEN SEARCH/REQUESTS 
FOR INFORMATION: 64 49 51 42 15 98 63 49 63 494

POST OFFICE 741 737 1022 892 758 869 839 911 763 7532

ATS (AMERICAN TRAFFIC 
SOLUTIONS PRIOR TO 

7/1/10) HEARINGS IN NBV N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0
LAF (NBV-AFTER 7/1/10) 

HEARINGS IN MDC N/A N/A N/A N/A NA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0

ADMINISTRATION

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
MONTHLY REPORTS 2016-17



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
TYPES OF CRIMES

FELONIES
HOMICIDE

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
ATTEMPT BURGLARY

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0 1 1
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
BURGLARY STRUCTURE

TREASURE ISLAND 0 1 0 1 2
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
BURGLARY RESIDENCE

TREASURE ISLAND 0 1 1 0 1
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
BURGLARY VEHICLE

TREASURE ISLAND 1 1 1 1 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 1 0 0 0 0
ROBBERY ARMED

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 1 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

1



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ROBBERY STRONGARM  

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
SEXUAL BATTERY

TREASURE ISLAND 1 0 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 1 0 0 0 0
AGG BATTERY/ASSAULT

TREASURE ISLAND 0 1 1 2 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
FRAUD GENERAL

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 1 1 1
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 1 0 0 1 0
CC FRAUD

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0 0 1
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
ID THEFT

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 1 0 1 0 0

2



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
INTERNET FRAUD

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND THEFT

TREASURE ISLAND 0 1 1 1 4
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 1 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 3 2 7 1
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT

TREASURE ISLAND 2 1 2 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 1 0 0
STOLEN VEHICLE THEFT & RECOVERY

TREASURE ISLAND 2 4 1 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 2 0 0 0 1
TOTAL FELONIES 12 13 14 15 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MISDEMEANORS
SIMPLE BATTERY

TREASURE ISLAND 0 1 0 0 2
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 1
DOMESTIC BATTERY

TREASURE ISLAND 2 0 1 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 1 1 0
ASSAULT

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 1 0 0 0 0

3



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
VERBAL THREATS

TREASURE ISLAND 1 0 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 1 0 0 0 0
THEFT GENERAL

TREASURE ISLAND 3 1 0 2 3
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 1 1 1
STOLEN DECAL

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0 1 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 1 1 0 2 0
STOLEN TAG

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 1 1 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
DUI

TREASURE ISLAND 0 3 1 3 1
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL MISDEMEANORS 9 6 5 11 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ARRESTS

ARREST TYPES
FELONY 1 4 7 4 1
MISDEMEANOR 10 6 8 9 4
BENCH WARRANT 0 1 3 0 1
CRIMINAL CITATIONS 28 43 29 18 9
TOTAL ARRESTS 39 54 47 31 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

INVESTIGATIONS
CARRY OVER PRIOR 24 20 20 16 20
NEW INVESTIGATIONS 11 12 16 14 16
CASES CLEARED 4 5 5 5 6
CLEARANCE RATE 36.60% 41.60% 31.25% 35.70% 37.50%
BACKGROUND INVEST. 4 4 3 2 3

TRAFFIC 281 188 199 343 503
PARKING 247 354 232 246 190
CRIMINAL CITATIONS 28 15 29 18 9

TOTAL CITATIONS WRITTEN 556 557 462 607 702

CAUSEWAY CITATIONS 256 137 166 282 431

5



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL
TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE 3732 3383 3747 3969 3872

HOW RECEIVED
911 RADIO 29 23 24 26 26
MUNICIPAL RADIO 25 19 18 22 28
WALK IN 13 10 15 15 14
TELEPHONE 228 265 272 267 264
OFFICER INITIATED 3,426 3049 3392 3618 3529

REPORT TYPES
MISC INCIDENT 30 31 32 33 38
OFFENSE INCIDENT 21 26 27 25 34
CRASH REPORT 10 8 8 17 16
HIT AND RUN 2 3 3 3 3
FIELD INTERVIEW 0 2 1 2 1
CODE WARNINGS 1 6 2 30 1
CODE VIOLATIONS 1 1 0 7 3

AVERAGE RESPONSE TIME
TOTAL TIME (MIN) 4066 18038 4375 4249 4353
TOTAL AVERAGE (MIN) 1.82 8.47 1.88 1.92 1.83
PRIORITY CALLS 2.45 7.24 6.54 4.69 3.19
ROUTINE CALLS 6.50 20.98 6.79 7.83 5.33
BUSY TIME 1,851 12267 2236 1642 2631
COURT/DEPO 552 158 284 302 57
UNCOMMITTED TIME (MIN)1198 1663 5613 1855 2305 1665



AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH PREVIOUS YEAR
May 2017 APRIL 2017 May 2016

FELONIES
HOMICIDE

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0
ATTEMPT BURGLARY

TREASURE ISLAND 1 1 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0
BURGLARY STRUCTURE

TREASURE ISLAND 2 1 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 1
BURGLARY RESIDENCE

TREASURE ISLAND 1 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 1
BURGLARY VEHICLE

TREASURE ISLAND 0 1 1
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 1
ROBBERY ARMED

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

1



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH PREVIOUS YEAR
May 2017 APRIL 2017 May 2016

ROBBERY STRONGARM
TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

SEXUAL BATTERY
TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

AGG BATTERY/ASSAULT
TREASURE ISLAND 0 2 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

FRAUD GENERAL
TREASURE ISLAND 1 1 1

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 1 0

CC FRAUD
TREASURE ISLAND 1 0 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

ID THEFT
TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

2



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH PREVIOUS YEAR
May 2017 APRIL 2017 May 2016

INTERNET FRAUD
TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

GRAND THEFT
TREASURE ISLAND 4 1 1

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 1 7 3

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT
TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 1

STOLEN VEHICLE THEFT & RECOVERY
TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 1

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 1 0 0
TOTAL FELONIES 12 15 11

TOTAL FELONIES YEAR TO DATE 66 54 60

MISDEMEANORS
SIMPLE BATTERY

TREASURE ISLAND 2 0 2
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 1 0 0
DOMESTIC BATTERY

TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0
N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0

HARBOR ISLAND 0 1 1

3



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH PREVIOUS YEAR
May 2017 APRIL 2017 May 2016

ASSAULT
TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

VERBAL THREATS  
TREASURE ISLAND 0 0 1

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 2

THEFT GENERAL
TREASURE ISLAND 3 2 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 1 1 2

STOLEN DECAL
TREASURE ISLAND 0 1 0

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 2 0

STOLEN TAG
TREASURE ISLAND 0 1 1

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

DUI
TREASURE ISLAND 1 3 1

N BAY ISLAND 0 0 0
HARBOR ISLAND 0 0 0

TOTAL MISDEMEANORS 8 11 10
TOTAL MISDEMEANORS YEAR TO DATE 39 31 46

4



b NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2017

CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH PREVIOUS YEAR
May 2017 APRIL 2017 May 2016

ARRESTS
ARREST TYPES
FELONY 1 4 3
MISDEMEANOR 4 9 10
BENCH WARRANT 1 0 3
CRIMINAL CITATIONS 9 18 29
TOTAL ARRESTS 15 31 45
TOTAL ARRESTS YEAR TO DATE 186 171 167

INVESTIGATIONS
CARRY OVER PRIOR 20 16 41
NEW INVESTIGATIONS 16 14 25
CASES CLEARED 6 5 12
CLEARANCE RATE 37.50% 35.70% 18.00%
BACKGROUND INVEST. 3 2 4

TRAFFIC 503 343 501
PARKING 190 246 245
CRIMINAL CITATIONS 9 18 29
TOTAL CITATIONS WRITTEN 702 607 775
TOTAL CITATIONS WRITTEN YEAR TO DATE 2,921 2219 3005

CAUSEWAY CITATIONS 431 282 394
TOTAL CAUSEWAY CITATIONS YEAR TO DATE 1414 983 1079

5



MAY 2017 APRIL 2017 MAY 2016
TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE 3,872 3,969 3,284

HOW RECEIVED
911 RADIO 26 26 29
MUNICIPAL RADIO 28 22 23
WALK IN 14 15 18
TELEPHONE 264 267 307
OFFICER INITIATED 3,529 3,618 2,892

REPORT TYPES
MISC INCIDENT 38 33 63
OFFENSE INCIDENT 34 25 37
CRASH REPORT 16 17 9
HIT AND RUN 3 3 3
FIELD INTERVIEW 1 2 6
CODE WARNINGS 1 30 13
CODE VIOLATIONS 3 7 0

AVERAGE RESPONSE TIME
TOTAL TIME (MIN) 4,353 4,249 5,314
TOTAL AVERAGE (MIN) 1.83 1.92 2.55
PRIORITY CALLS 3.19 4.69 3.02
ROUTINE CALLS 5.33 7.83 9.02
BUSY TIME 2,631 1,642 2,362
COURT/DEPO 57 302 118
UNCOMMITTED TIME (MIN) 1,665 2,305 2,834






	AGENDA
	4 - Grant Writer's Report
	5E - Planning & Zoning Board Reports
	8 - Village Manager's Report
	9A - Title VI-Non-Discrimination Policy
	10A - 7915 East Drive  Code Enforment Fines
	10B - Public Works Department Trailer-Mounted Jet Rodder
	11A - 11C - Brick Village 79, LLC Extension
	12A - RFP No. 2017-003 Roof Repairs to 1841 Galleon Street Facility Award
	12B - RFP No. 2017-004 Cleaning of Main Wet Well at 1851 Galleon Street Award
	12C - Florida League of Cities Annual Conference
	13A - FY 17/18 Proposed Millage Rates and Budget Public Hearings
	14A - June 7, 2017 Special Village Commisssion Meeting Minutes
	14B - May 9, 2017 Regular Village Commission Meeting Minutes
	14C - March 28, 2017 Regular Village Commission Meeting Minutes
	14D - March 14, 2017 Regular Village Commission Meeting Minutes
	14E - February 28, 2017 Regular Village Commission Meeting Minutes
	MONTHLY STAT REPORTS



